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THE COMPANY AT A GLANCE

Basic information

Registered office: Tomasikova 48, 832 37 Bratislava, Slovak
Republic

Registered: Commercial Register administered by District Court
Bratislava |, section: Sa, entry: 601/B

Corp. ID (IC0): 00151653

Legal form: joint-stock company

Scope of business: universal bank

Bank profile

Slovenska sporitelfia was established in 1825 as the first savings
bank in Slovakia. Today, the company is the largest commercial
bank in Slovakia, serving approximately 2 million clients. It has long
held aleading position in total assets, household loans, client
deposits, numbers of branches and ATMs. The Bank offers its
comprehensive services at 190 branches for retail clients and 4
regional commercial centres in Slovakia.

In 2001, Slovenska sporitelfia became a member of Erste Group,
which was Austria’s first savings bank, founded in 1819. Since
1997 the group has developed into one of the largest banking
groups focussing on retail and corporate clients in Central and
Eastern Europe. It consists of Erste Group AG consolidates
through direct or indirect shareholdings. At present, the Erste
Group has around 47 000 employees serving more than 16 million
clients at over 2 000 branches in seven countries: Austria, Czech
republic, Slovak Republic, Romania, Hungary, Croatia and Serbia).

Shareholder structure of Slovenska sporitelia as at
31/12/2022

Erste Group Bank AG
Registered office: Am Belvedere 1, Vienna 1100, Austria

Share in the registered capital and voting rights: 100.00%
Significant direct holdings of the Bank

LANED, a.s. 100.00%
SLSP Seed Starter, s.r.o. 100.00%
SLSP Social Finance, s.r.o. 60.40%
Procurement Services SK, s.r.o. 51.00%
Slovak Banking Credit Bureau, s.r.o. 33.33%
Holding Card Service, s.r.o., Ceska republika 21.78%
Prva stavebna sporiteliia, a. s. 9.98%'
Ratings as at 31/12/2022

Moody'‘s

Long-term rating / Outlook A2 [ stable
Short-term rating P-1
Basic credit rating baa2
Adjusted credit rating baal
Counterparty risk (long-term/short-term) A1/P-1
Covered bonds rating Aaa

This annual report has been prepared in accordance with Act no.
431/2002 Coll. on accounting as amended (the “Accounting Act”),
Act no. 423/2015 Coll. on statutory audit as amended, and Act no.
566/2001 Coll. on securities and investment services and on the
amendment of certain laws as amended (the “Securities Act”) as

"Under a shareholder agreement with Erste Group AG, Slovenska sporitelfia
exercises a 35,00 % share of voting rights in Prva stavebna sporitelfia, a. s.
(Erste Group Bank AG has a 25.02% shareholding in Prva stavebna

Slovenska sporitelfia is a securities dealer. This Annual Report
substitutes the annual financial report as defined in Act no.
429/2002 Coll. on the stock exchange as amended (the “Stock
Exchange Act”) as Slovenska sporitelfia is an issuer of debt
securities admitted to trading on a regulated market. Information
included in the section “Annexes” contains all information required
under § 77(2)(b) of the Securities Act, except for the list of
companies consolidated in the financial statements in accordance
with § 77(2)(b)(1), which is included in the chapter Summary
Corporate Governance Report. Information for the purposes of §
77(2)(b)(3) of the Securities Act is given in note 15 the financial
statements and information for the purposes of § 77(2)(i) and (j) is
given in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, in the
section “Annexes”. This Annual Report includes a statement in
accordance with § 34(2)(c) of the Stock Exchange Act and the
internet address at which the Bank’s parent company Erste Group
Bank AG has published its annual report for 2022 as required by §
34(3) of the Stock Exchange Act. This annual report also includes,
under note 34 on the consolidated financial statements in the
section “Annexes”, a proposal for the distribution of profit in
accordance with § 20(1)(f) of the Act on Accounting and § 77(2)(c)
of the Securities Act.

Method of publication of the annual report

Slovenska sporitelfa files its annual report, including its individual
and consolidated financial statements and the auditor’s reports, in
the register of financial statements in accordance with the
provisions of Act no. 431/2002 Coll. on accounting, as amended.
It publishes the document on its website and a notice of
publication is placed in the Hospodarske noviny newspaper.

Contact persons for the compilation of the Annual
Report

Mdria Valachyova, chief economist
valachyova.maria@slsp.sk

Matej Bastak, investor relations
bastak.matej@slsp.sk

Martin Rehacek, reporting
rehacek.martin@slsp.sk

Lenka Sporkova, reporting
sporkova.lenka@slsp.sk

Marta Cesnhakova, spokesperson
cesnakova.marta@slsp.sk

Contacts

Slovenska sporitelfa, a.s.

Tomasikova 48

832 37 Bratislava

Telephone: +4212 4862 1111

Fax: +4212 5826 8670

Client Centre: 0850 111 888

E-mail: info@slsp.sk; press@slsp.sk

Website: www.slsp.sk
www.erstegroup.com/en/investors/reports/financial-reports

sporitelfia, a. s.) Ownership interests in registered capital and voting rights
are equal in other companies.

SLOVENSKA S

sporitelfia


mailto:info@slsp.sk
mailto:press@slsp.sk

Financial Highlights




ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Consolidated results 31Dec 2018 31Dec 2019 31Dec 2020 mm

Prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

(in EUR miillion) (in EUR million) (in EUR million) (in EUR million) (in EUR million)

Total assets 17,443 18,619 20,706 23,154 23,746
Loans and advances to banks 48 0 0 50 0
Loans and advances to customers (net) 13,008 14,113 14,902 15,898 17,929
Investments 3,721 3,743 3,817 4,028 4,300
Customer deposits 13,653 14,392 14,869 15,973 16,913
Equity 1,513 1,620 1,792 2,051 2,180
Net profit 184 180 108 228 243
Selected ratios (in%) (in %) (in%) (in%) (in %)
Return on equity* 12.6 11.6 6.2 12.2 11.7
Return on assets* 1.1 1.0 0.6 1.0 1.0
Cost income ratio 48.3 48.3 48.5 47.6 46.3
Net interest margin* 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.2 2.1
Net loans to deposits ratio 95.3 98.1 100.2 99.5 106.0
Total capital adequacy 18.1 17.3 18.7 20.5 19.3
Tier 1 capital ratio 17.1 16.4 18.0 19.8 18.7
Other figures

Number of employees 4,105 4,070 3,770 3,644 3,585
Number of branches 250 233 203 200 190
Number of ATMs 801 754 747 750 748

Operating income (in EUR million) Operating expenses (in EUR million)
21 11 12 47 37 33 35
434
I I - - l
2019 2020 2021 2022 2019 2020 2021 2022

m Personnel expenses
m Other operating exp.
Depreciation

Other (e.g. trading income, dividends)
m Net fee and commission income
m Net interest income

Loans and advances to customers (net, in EUR billion) Customer deposits (in EUR hillion)
0.2 03 0.1 0.1 0.2
2019 2020 2021 2022 2019 2020 2021 2022
m Households m Corporations © General governments m Households m Corporations © General governments
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Peter Krutil
Chairman of the Board of Directors
and CEO

Two extreme events — the pandemic and the war — have completely
redefined things that even quite recently we considered normal. The
pandemic has now been with us for over three years. At first, we were
frightened but we gradually learned to live with it and we found ways to
defeat it. Scientific progress and a great deal of human effort have
saved millions of lives. A year ago, a word that we had almost forgotten
came back into our lives — war.

The Russian invasion of Ukraine understandably shocked us because
it is our neighbour and we could soon have enemy soldiers on our
borders. However, just as scientists and politicians were able to come
together and find a way to deal with the pandemic, the democratic world
united behind Ukraine’s fight for their freedom and ours. | know that a
bank’s annual report is not the sort of place you expect to see words
like these, but they are important for at least two reasons: Firstly, our
freedom and security are really on the line. Secondly, the war has had
an adverse effect on nearly everything that we have experienced (not
only) in the economy.

It began with the unbelievable jump in energy prices, but also in
uncertainty about supplies. Inflation became Slovakia’'s word of the
year. We forgot what it was like and suddenly it reached levels not seen
for decades. Its arrival was just a matter of time because there had
never been such an extended period of low or negative interest rates.
The response to inflation and other factors transformed the world of
banking. People and firms had to deal with the situation and we can
see that they have changed their behaviour.

The most turbulence from the surge in interest rates was felt in the
mortgage market. Sales broke records in the spring but since the
summer we noticed a sharp cooling in demand. Uncertainty made
people cautious about investing and rapid price rises gradually ate into
their disposable incomes. The good news is that there have not been
such large withdrawals of investments as might have been expected
based on past experience. The situation has also affected the
businesses. The need to refinance operating loans has increased as
energy and material prices have shot upwards, and volatility has made
planning impossible. Other important factors are impediments in
relations between customers and suppliers and the total transformation
of east-west logistics required by the war.

STATEMENT BY CEO

Firms are therefore expecting the economy to cool and getting ready
for this. As we are one of the links in the chain, we too must be
prepared. It means taking more precautions and placing a stronger
emphasis on client care and support. People often say that we bankers
hand out umbrellas when the sun is shining. We are proving that
proverb wrong by helping our clients in their times of need, which the
present time certainly qualifies as. In cooperation with our corporate
clients, we are reviewing their financing to adapt it to the new
conditions. Thanks to an innovative solution, the “Financial Health
Index”, we can show them the current state of their finances and how
they compare with their competitors. Many clients are changing their
business model and their needs for financing. A significant milestone
which shows that we are on the right track is our share of the corporate
loan market going above 20% for the first time.

The most valuable assets in our bank are our employees. We have
never had such intensive discussions as now about how to meet their
needs through pay and other policies. We try to provide ways for people
to fulfil themselves, for example by working remotely or through our
foundation. Many people thus not only have successful careers but also
contribute to their local community. We aim to be an attractive employer
for women aiming to have a family and we therefore offer them various
benefits.

This brings us to a special colleague. It is now about a year since we
introduced Vesna, our first 3D holographic banker. You might have met
and spoken with her at our Bratislava Nivy branch. She also functions
as a chatbot on the Bank’s website, where she significantly eases the
load on our colleagues in the Client Centre. New technologies enable
us to offer people experiences that would have been considered sci-fi
not so long ago. Maybe they will become the norm within a few years,
and not just in banks.

Although chatbots and voicebots are an increasingly frequent tool for
communication with customers, the visual presentation is unique even
on the world stage. Nevertheless, we do not aim for Vesna to replace
people. She is intended to free her human colleagues from routine
tasks so that they can spend more time giving high-quality personal
advice. What | like best about the project is that it is entirely made in
Slovakia, with Slovak firms contributing to the development of Vesna’s
technology.

SLOVENSKA S
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As a digital leader, we are expected to lead the way with innovations
and we welcome the challenge. Naturally, we need to offer useful
innovations. For example, instant payments. More than 20 million
payments that do not take a day or more but just a few seconds. We
believe that our clients also appreciate this sort of banking. They are
very open to digital services, with nearly 30% of our products now being
sold online. Just in the last year, we have added tools for improving
financial health, not only for retail clients — for example, the investment
plan — but also companies, for whom we offer the financial health index.
We have received excellent feedback on these tools from our clients
and | hope that this year we will benefit together with them.

You are probably waiting for me to talk about our financial results, but
once again | will leave that until the end. | would like to mention a few
other firsts, because we really had a fine crop of them in 2022. We won
two “bank of the year” titles. First from the British magazine Euromoney
and later in the Trend Top awards. It is always a pleasure when
someone recognises your good work. | am also especially pleased that
our clients appreciate us. Last year we passed the one million active
clients mark. We have been working for this for a long time and we had
to make quite a lot of changes, so | want to thank all of you for this
success. We want to keep going though and have even more active
clients.

Behaving responsibly to the planet, the country and people is part of
the brand identity of Slovenska sporitelfia. In recent years,
“sustainability” has become a watchword for the Bank and nearly every
employee has met with the abbreviation “ESG”. As a bank, we monitor
the carbon footprint both from our own operations and from the
emissions we finance. We also have obligations to society. Diversity
and inclusion are no longer frightening foreign words and we continue
to support many activities in the fields of culture, sport and civil society.
The FinQ programme is improving financial literacy in schools. Our
colleagues in the social bank are supporting people getting started with
their own business and at the same time working miracles for people
in truly difficult financial situations. Further evidence that we honour our
commitments comes from green bonds. We were the first bank to issue
them because our responsibility to the planet is more urgent than ever
and we have noticed people thinking the same way when they invest.

This brings me to a project close to my own heart — Seed Starter, our
corporate venture capital programme, which is the first of its kind in
Slovakia. Not many people know that for over seven years we have
been the one bank in Slovakia to support starting entrepreneurs and
Seed Starter extends our activities for the development of the business
environment. We have two reasons for this. Firstly we believe that it is
impossible to change the structure of the economy without improving
the business environment. Secondly, we feel it to be our duty. We are
one of the top three corporate banks in the market and we see a gap
in connection with low expertise in the area among both clients and
banks. We see that clients need more than just finance, and this is what
makes the project unique. Alongside financing, we can connect clients
with specialists in the sector which they want to do business in. We will
also involve our existing clients, facilitating consultation so that we can
help start-ups get into the market with them. We aim to create an
infrastructure that gives firms access not just to money but also know-
how, and thereby inspires others.

If you have read this far, | believe you also find this interesting. | did not
want this to be a summary of dry numbers. Data are important but the
story behind them is even more important. That is why | wanted to begin
by telling you what we are working on, what we worry about and what
brings us joy. As to the numbers, they suggest our current situation is
favourable for banking. The era of extremely low interest rates was
good for clients and we liked helping them, but it was not a business
model that could sustain us forever. In the last ten years the volume of
loans more than doubled, but the profitability of banks was largely
unchanged. Record profits were made, but those numbers must not be
taken out of context. The profitability of Slovak banks remains below

SLOVENSKA S

the European average for the sector. We cannot afford such low
profitability and financial health. | do not mean to complain. | am
thinking mainly of the future. In recent years we have learned to expect
the unexpected. It is important to remember that banks were and are
important in dealing with these crises. Not only during the pandemic
but also with more expensive energy and production inputs. We have
not turned off the taps. We are still supporting the economy. We can
afford it because we have managed our capital well in our activities.

It is important to speak about our long-term strategy and the long-term
influence on what is happening around us. How we affect our clients,
employees and society. Decision-making in society and in politics
seems to be all about the short-term effects. Processes which affect
people, society or nature operating on a longer timescale are not so
interesting. Companies like Slovenska sporitelfia, the largest bank in
the market, are well-placed to show how important it is to do things that
may not make big changes in the short term but can be very influential
in the long term. | am thinking of how we care for the environment or
steps towards developing a capital market or a better business
environment. In ten years, we could build not only successful small and
medium enterprises but also a community which believes that the
future is yours, which talks not only about winning but also thinks about
how to maintain prosperity. | believe that as a society, we will continue
to work together as we did during COVID.

| believe that Slovakia will emerge from this relatively difficult period in
good shape and that after 2023, the economy will once again be
running at full power. That is the world that | try to live in. | do not want
to read the pessimistic scenarios that appear so often for Slovakia. Our
Bank’s forecast for this year suggests that it will not be as bad as we
think or hear. As Julo Satinsky says, not just in our advertisement, we
should get things done. And try to reach agreement. If not on
everything, then at least on the important things that can move us
forward. That could really make for a better world.

!: /

/
¢ /
Peter Krutil
Chairman of the Board of Directors and CEO
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TOP MANAGEMENT OF SLOVENSKA
SPORITELNA, A.S.

PETER KRUTIL
Chairman of the Board of Directors and CEO

Peter Krutil is a graduate of the Management Faculty at the
University of Economics in Bratislava. He served internships at
Creditanstalt Vienna and Creditanstalt London. From 1991 to 1993,
he was a securities dealer for VUB Bank, where he worked on the
listing of new companies on the stock exchange. In 1993, he joined
Tatra banka as a dealer in money and capital markets. From 1993
to 1998 he was a managing director and later a member of the
Board of Directors at Creditanstalt Securities, o.c.p., a.s.,
Bratislava. In 1998 he worked for the Ministry of Economy of the
Slovak Republic. In December 1998 he was elected a member of
the Board of Directors of Slovenska sporitelfia. On 1 April 2015 he
took up the position of Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors
and first Deputy CEO of Slovenska sporitelfia.

He was elected a Chairman of the Board of Directors and CEO of
Slovenska sporitelfia on 1 January 2018. He is responsible for
management of the Staff Units line and Balance Sheet
Management.

PAVEL CETKOVSKY
Member of the Board of Directors and Deputy CEO

Pavel Cetkovsky has a master’'s degree from the Brno University
of Technology and a bachelor's degree from the Institute for
Economics and Management in Kyiv, Ukraine. In 1994, he began
his professional career at Ceska spofitelna, where he held several
managerial positions in risk management and assets and liabilities
management. He worked in Erstebank Kyiv in Ukraine as a member

of the Board of Directors and later its Chairman from 2007 to 2013.
His areas of competence and responsibility included risk
management, information technology and operations and staff
units. He joined Erste Group Bank AG in Vienna in 2013 with
responsibility for liquidity management throughout the Erste
Group, managing banking book interest rate risk and managing the
banking group’s investment portfolio.

He was elected a member of the Board of Directors and Deputy
CEO of Slovenska sporitelfia with effect from 26 January 2018. He
is responsible for management of the Finance line. On 1 July 2019
he was entrusted with management of the Risk Management line
and on 1 December 2019 he was appointed the Chief Risk Officer
in Slovenska sporitelfa.

JURAJBARTA
Member of the Board of Directors and Deputy CEO

Juraj Barta is a graduate of Comenius University in Bratislava,
majoring in physics — management. He holds a professional
certificate and title as a CFA® (Chartered Financial Analyst®)

His professional career has been associated with Slovenska
sporitelfia almost from the beginning, having started in 2004 as a
macroeconomic analyst. From 2007, he worked at the Bank as
chief economist and since 2011 as Director of Marketing and
Market Analysis. In 2018, digital banking and customer relationship
management (CRM) were added to his field of responsibility.

He was elected a member of the Board of Directors and Deputy
CEO of Slovenska sporitelfia with effect from 8 June 2022. He is
responsible for the Retail Banking line.

SLOVENSKA S
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development, security, management and architecture of
information systems and technology.

He was elected a member of the Board of Directors and Deputy
CEO of Slovenska sporitelfia with effect from 1 July 2018. He is
responsible for the IT and Operations line.

NORBERT HOVANCAK
Member of the Board of Directors and Deputy CEO

Norbert Hovan¢ak graduated from the Faculty of Business
Administration of the University of Economics in Bratislava, the
Faculty of Arts of the University of PreSov and interdisciplinary
studies at the Faculty of Law of the Pavol Jozef Saférik University
in KosSice. His professional career has been closely linked with
Slovenska sporiteltia, where he began working in 1998. He worked
his way up through several positions in branches, taking care of
corporate clients. Since 2001 he has held management positions
related to corporate client risk management. In 2013 he became
the director for corporate clients and then in 2018 he took over
corporate banking as a whole.

He was elected a member of the Board of Directors and Deputy
CEO of Slovenska sporitelfia with effect from 1 October 2019. He
is responsible for the Corporate banking and Markets line.

MILAN HAIN
Member of the Board of Directors and Deputy CEO

Milan Hain completed doctoral research on computer modelling,
measurement and systems management at the Faculty of
Mathematics and Physics of Comenius University in Bratislava and
the Eindhoven University of Technology. From 1993 to 1999 he
worked at VUB Bank in various positions and management
functions related to IT development. He then worked as Chief
Information Officer for Slovak Telekom until 2012 and until June
2018 he was a member of the Board of Directors and Chief
Information Officer in Raiffeisenbank in Prague, where he was
responsible for technology, the transformation programme and
the implementation of an omnichannel platform. In his career, he
has participated in many management programmes and training
courses on marketing, finance, human resources and
communication and he has professional experience in the

SLOVENSKA S
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SUPERVISORY BOARD OF SLOVENSKA
SPORITELNA, A.S.

DAVID O 'MAHONY
Chairman

David O'Mahony graduated from the National University of Ireland
in Cork with a degree in Computer Science and Mathematics. He
started his professional career in 1985 at Bank of Ireland in Dublin
as an analyst — programmer in the international banking
department. He later worked as a programmer, project manager
and consultant at several companies in the field of information
technology development for financial institutions in London,
Vienna and Prague. In 2015, he joined Erste Group, first as the
manager responsible for overseeing the group’s operational
directors, then as the head of the IT sector within Holding. In
January 2020, he became Chief Operating Officer (COO) of the
entire Erste Group and a member of the Board of Directors of Erste
Group Bank AG. He sits on the supervisory boards of companies
focused on the development and implementation of IT solutions
within the Erste Group.

He has been a member of the Supervisory Board of Slovenska
sporitelfia since 2 February 2022. He was elected a Chairman on
23 February 2022.

JANHOMAN
Vice-chairman

Jan Homan graduated in economics at the Vienna University of
Economics and Business. He gained banking experience in
Frankfurt, New York and Dusseldorf for Chase Manhattan Bank,
which he joined in 1972, and later in Bank Société Générale
Alsacienne in Vienna. Since 1978 he has held management
positions in the international engineering and chemical
corporations Sandvik Austria and Sun Chemical in Vienna. Since
1991 he has been the CEO of Constantia Teich Group and since
2004 the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Constantia
Flexibles Group. In 2011 he was elected a member of the
Supervisory Board of Constantia Flexibles. In 2004 he became a
member of the Supervisory Board of Erste Group Bank AG and he
is currently the first Deputy Chairman.

He has been a member of the Supervisory Board of Slovenska
sporitelfia since 2012. He was re-elected for a further term of
office in 2017.

VAZIL HUDAK
Independent member

He studied international relations and diplomacy at the Moscow
State Institute of International Relations. He was educated in law
at Charles University in Prague. He completed a training
programme for executives in international business management
at Harvard Business School in Boston.

He began his professional career at the Ministry of Foreign Affairs
of the Czech and Slovak Federative Republic and later worked in
executive positions in advisory and investment groups focusing on
Central and Eastern European countries (Eastwest Institute,
CITIGROUP, J.P. MORGAN CHASE) before becoming a member of
the Economic and Financial Committee of the Council of the
European Union and a board member at the European Bank for
Reconstruction and Development and the European Investment
Bank.

From 2012 to 2016, he worked at the Ministry of Finance of the
Slovak Republic as state secretary and later as minister. From
2016 to 2019 he was Vice-president of the European Investment
Bank. He currently works in the GLOBSEC non-governmental
organisation, where he is responsible for the political and strategic
management of its key programmes. On 11 November 2020, he
was elected to the Supervisory Board of Slovenska sporitelfa as
an independent member.

PAUL FORMANKO
Independent member

Paul Formanko is a graduate of the University of lllinois at Chicago,
the Faculty of Economics of Katholieke Universiteit Leuven,
Belgium, and the University of Chicago, from which he holds an
MBA in Finance and International Business. In 1994 he joined J.P.
Morgan Investment Management in New York and London as an
analyst and investment advisor for emerging markets in Central
Europe, Russia and Turkey. From 1998 he held senior analytical
and advisory positions at Goldman Sachs International and CLSA
Global Emerging Markets in London. In 2003 he joined J.P. Morgan
Equity Research in London, where he worked in senior research
positions until 2018. During this period Paul became the Director
of CEEMEA Banks Equity Research and CEO of J.P. Morgan
London. He is currently an independent member of the
Supervisory Board of Slovenska sporitelfia. He was elected with
effect from 4 February 2019.

ALENA ADAMCOVA
Supervisory Board member elected by employees

Alena Adamcova holds a master’s degree from the Faculty of Arts
of Constantine the Philosopher University in Nitra. She has worked
at Slovenska sporitelfia since 1985 in various positions in the
branch network, and since 1996 in managerial positions. She
currently works as a specialist for entrepreneurs. She is a member
of the Erste Bank European Works Council and Vice-chairman of
the Trade Union Committee in Slovenska sporitelta.

She was first elected to the Supervisory Board of Slovenska
sporitelfia in 2016. After her term of office expired on 2 November
2021, she was re-elected by the Bank's employees with effect
from 2 February 2022.

JURAJ FUTAK
Supervisory Board member elected by employees

Juraj Futdk is a graduate of the Vrutky Grammar School. In 1996,
he became a regional manager in the non-profit organisation Karta
mladeze Slovenska (Slovakia Youth Card), and later an executive
in Priemyselnd banka, a.s. In 2000, he joined Slovenska sporiteliia
as a personal banker responsible for the affluent clients segment.
In 2008 he became the chairman of the trade union branch in
Zilina; since 2012 he has been a member of the trade union’s
company-level committee in Slovenska sporitelfia.

He was elected to the Supervisory Board of Slovenska sporitelfia
by the employees of Slovenskd sporitelfia with effect from
2 February 2022.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

200000

financially literate young people

We believe that financially literate young
people are vital to Slovakia“s future
economic success. FinQ, a certified

programme of the Slovenska sporitelfia

Foundation and National bank of Slovakia
Foundation, helps them make good

financial decisions that can significantly

improve their lives. In 2022 over 11 000
students absolved the programme.

1000

disadvantaged people housed

We believe that housing can make
a positive and measurable change in the
lives of socially disadvantaged people
and families. Everyone needs access to
decent housing if they want to get and
keep a job, study, and develop
themselves in a stable environment and
achieve financial security. In 2022
Slovenska sporitelna provided housing

P

ST

300 000

trees planted

e,

We believe that whether in the forest or
the city, contact with nature is vital for
public health, climate sustainability and
the preservation of the natural character
and beauty of our country for future
generations. Just in 2022, we planted 173
thousand tree saplings.

\ for 277 disadvantaged people.

Supporting diversity and inclusion at the workplace

Creating a diverse workforce and an inclusive work culture is a
long-term priority of the Bank. In 2022, the Bank adopted the first
ever Diversity and Inclusion Strategy of Slovenskd sporitelfia,
which has been an effective tool for improving the implementation
of the Internal Diversity and Inclusion Policy that Slovenska
sporitelfia adopted in 2021.

Our strategic goals to 2025 are:
a) promoting an open, respectful and safe work environment
throughout the Bank;
b) support for woman s participation in Bank management; and
c) inclusion of persons with disabilities.

Since 2022, Slovenska sporitelfia also has a new specialised
position — manager for diversity and inclusion. The Bank has
implemented training for diversity, inclusion, and equal treatment
in the onboarding programme for new employees. During this
programme, new employees also learn about the Bank’s
mechanisms to prevent harmful and abusive behaviour (e.g.
bullying or sexual harassment) and its negative impacts.

Slovenska sporitelfia also places great emphasis on the attitudes
and experience of its employees. Therefore, in 2022, it organised
several surveys — an engagement survey, the first edition of a
survey on diversity and inclusion as well as a gender audit. The
results of the surveys and the audit have enabled us to better
understand their current level of diversity and inclusion in the
workplace and to make decisions accordingly.

630 days

of voluntary work by employees

Working conditions

Safe and adaptable employment is part of the working culture of
Slovenska sporitelfia. Every year, it strives to improve the working
conditions of its employees, to invest in their development and
training, as well as improve opportunities for an effective work-life

2 |n 2022, Slovenska sporitelfia measured only Scope 1 (direct emissions)
and Scope 2 (indirect emissions from energy consumption) emissions.

balance. In 2022, it organised 458 training workshops and
activities, removed barriers to drawing certain benefits, and
introduced new benefits, as well as entering into a new collective
agreement with the company’s trade unions.

As a resource for its employees’ work-life balance and mental
health, Slovenska sporitelfia supports their participation in
community organising and engagement. It provides employees a
day off to volunteer as well as the opportunity to draw on grant
funding to benefit their community. In 2022, Bank employees
spent 630 days volunteering in their communities or working on
other community service projects. In addition, our foundation
financially supported 12 employee projects in the field of healthy
lifestyle, education and sustainability in an amount of more than
EUR 50 000.

The Bank cares about the environment

As one of the main pillars in the transformation towards
sustainable development, environmental protection plays an
important role in all the Bank’s activities. Continuous reduction of
energy consumption is among its main priorities, as well as
reduction of emissions from operations, responsible waste sorting
and minimisation of office paper consumption.

- 61%

reduction of emissions? from 2017

Slovenska sporitelfia demonstrates its responsible approach to
mitigating climate change through its participation (at the level of
the parent company Erste Group) in the Net Zero Banking Alliance,
as part of which it has committed itself to reducing the carbon
footprint of its portfolio and achieving a Net-Zero portfolio by
2050. It thus directly contributes to achieving the goals of the
Paris Agreement.

The Bank also supports the transition to a low-carbon economy
and the promotion of environmental sustainability by offering
responsible products and issued green bonds.
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THE CLIENT IS ALWAYS THE CENTRE OF
ATTENTION

Learning how our clients see us

Direct feedback from customers is one of the basic aids we use in
setting the right course for the Bank. Slovenska sporitelfia has
long used a balanced combination of regular, ad hoc surveys, and
data analyses. At the end is again the client — the aim of these
activities is to identify opportunities to improve the client
experience. Client satisfaction is included in the criteria (KPIs) for
calculating the variable remuneration of all the Bank's staff.

Building clients “financial health is a strategic priority for

Slovenska sporitelfia

The overall score for satisfaction with the Bank remains
consistently high, with year-on-year improvements in all sub-
indicators across all criteria. Clients rate the two main channels
they used to get in touch with the Bank — whether digital banking,
getting advice, or being served in the branch network. Security,
speed, and stability are the three main pillars of satisfaction in the
digital channels. When being served in the branch network, the
visual appearance of the branches, the staff's approach and their
ability to explain the Bank’s products and services are perceived
highly positively.

94%

Customer satisfaction after visiting a branch

LEADER IN RETAIL BANKING

Popularity of digital channels continues to grow

With steady growth in the number of clients using George and due
to client-oriented end-to-end processes with minimal clicks, the
share of sales through digital channels increased substantially in
2022. The optimisation of campaigns based on transactional client
behaviour also contributed to growth. Last but not least, the
pandemic also naturally led to changes in client behaviour. Many
of them now consider banking transactions via digital channels to
be a matter of course. This is why Slovenska sporitelia is striving
to bring new solutions in George for essentially all products, from
loans to payment cards to insurance and investments.

28.1%

Share of digital sales

But it's not just about sales activities. In 2022, the Bank worked
hard to make as many service activities available to clients where
they have it most to hand —in George. These are products of daily
use such as card blocking or PIN code display, but also credit
products. The fact that customer servicing in George really does
work is evidenced by the numbers of extra consumer and
mortgage loan repayments, with over 80% of them being made
online.

Branch tablet improves the client experience

During 2022, the Bank gradually began to move digital signing to
the tablet, as the primary tool for client conversion and advice,
with the aim of serving the client comprehensively on one device.
The service is thus simple and transparent for clients.

Following the implementation of investment advice on the tablet,
the share of advice in total sales grew significantly. The unique
client experience thanks to the new E2E digital process led to this
share rising to almost 80%.

For clients from Ukraine, George learned Ukrainian, and to

help people in need in Ukraine, we implemented in George
the option for clients do donate to a selected appeal.

In April 2022, we implemented investment advice on the tablet,
where it then became an integral part of our service in the branch
network. This has brought the whole process of selecting an
investment solution even closer to clients.

Number one in household financing

In 2022, Slovenska sporitelfia maintained its leading position in
mortgage and consumer finance. It has the ambition to be the bank
of first choice for existing clients who are considering financing
their needs.

Mortgage appetite in 2022 was influenced by the progressive
increase in interest rates over the year. Early indications of future
interest rate rises have already caused a significant increase in
mortgage demand across the market during the first half of the
year. The second half of the year was subsequently characterised
by subdued demand, with a number of factors contributing to this
— higher interest rates, high inflation, and energy uncertainty.
Despite the turbulent situation, the Bank maintained its market
share in mortgage lending above 25% with year-on-year balance
sheet growth of almost 11%.

The loosening of anti-pandemic measures and the general revival
of interest in consumer finance across all sales channels enabled
the Bank to fulfil its clients’ consumer finance needs. Thanks to the
focus on omnichannel loan sales, money is available to clients 24
hours a day, 7 days a week. With a market share above 28%
Slovenska sporitelfia reaffirmed its position as the bank with the
largest portfolio of consumer loans.

Investments and insurance are already a “classic”

In addition to lending, investments and insurance have also
become an integral part of customer care. A significant
improvement was the launch of the process for setting up regular
investments in George. Clients can invest according to investment
topics that interest them, or which they trust. In addition, for
clients with savings in investments, George now enables clients to
make an extraordinary deposit.

€42.4 million

Net insurance brokerage commissions

For clients with insurance and late payment of insurance, George
brought the possibility of quick payment of insurance premiums,
while clients with pillar Il savings can now make occasional extra
contributions to their pension. Insurance coverage was extended
to loans, as well as personal belongings and cards. Slovenska
sporitelfia wishes to continue providing improved solutions for
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clients also in the area of life insurance and to offer them
meaningful coverage that reflects their current needs.

Nonetheless, the external environment was not so favourable to
investments and partly also to insurance (with a capital
component). Due to negative developments in the financial
markets, the rising costs of current consumption and the war in
Ukraine, customers were cautious in allocating their available
funds. In February and March, the Bank recorded an increased
volume of redemptions and cash withdrawals. On the positive
side, these increased withdrawals managed to stabilise relatively
quickly, indicating rising financial literacy and confidence in the
banking sector. Despite the turbulent year, customers opened
tens of thousands of new regular investments, with net mutual
fund sales for the 2022 remaining positive. Added to this was
increased interest in investment solutions with a known upfront
return, i.e. bonds. Their sales volume increased more than fivefold.

The acquisition of new clients and their subsequent
activation remain a priority for Slovenska sporitelfia. We

focus on clients from all segments, with an emphasis on
supporting the young and families who have multiple
products with us.

Our loyalty programme has undergone changes

As of March 2022, the Bank published new terms and conditions
of the My Reward programme. The redesign of the programme
was aimed at removing limiting conditions that were difficult for
clients to follow. At the same time, the My Reward programme was
made available to clients in the George mobile app. The
implementation resulted in higher client satisfaction and was
reflected in a decrease in complaints related to the loyalty
programme.

Current accounts, too, saw modifications. The Bank simplified the
range of current accounts available to the client and unified their
names under the common name SPACE.

Despite the gradual cancellation of passbook accounts, we are
successful in keeping a large share of funds at the Bank. The
money is subsequently being reallocated to more modern and
profitable forms of savings.

>1 million

active Slovenska sporitelfia clients

Affiliate network with an emphasis on advice

Slovenska sporitelfia with 190 branches and 748 ATMs remains
the bank with the most accessible physical distribution network.
The world of banking has been changing significantly in recent
years. Even with the contribution of the pandemic, clients are
increasingly preferring to move cash and service operations to the
online space. Branches are thus becoming mainly a place for
advice. The Bank responded to this trend in 2022, when it
increased the number of advice branches from 38 to 65. Clients
can make cash transactions in self-service zones, where
Slovenska sporitelfia has already provided 183 ATMs with a
deposit function. The number of cash deposits made using self-
service facilities grew by 51%, with the volume of deposits growing
more, by 54%.

>20 million

Instant payments

Dynamic developments in payments

From 1 February 2022, Slovenska sporitelfia, together with two
other Slovak banks, began to provide its clients with the possibility
to send and receive instant payments. This innovation in the world
of payments brings processing within a few seconds and is online
24/7, regardless of weekends and holidays.

Simple entering, high availability and usefulness with
regard to fast processing and with an emphasis on

constantly increasing security of payments processing —
all this is what Slovenska sporitelfia strives for in the
payments system.

In 2022, Slovenska sporitelfia also worked intensively on
preparations for a major technological and functional change
within the Target2 system, as well as changes brought by the
Eurosystem in the framework of the T2/T2S consolidation project.
As of March 2023, it has decided, as one of the first banks in the
market, to switch from the current MT standard to the new MX
standard in the field of cross-border payments processing.
Interbank communication in the form of the ISO standard provides
the possibility to transfer data in a structured and consistent form.

95%

of cash transactions were made by clients using self-
service devices

Slovenska sporitel'fia stands by clients even in difficult
times

Towards the end of the year, the Bank launched an inflation
calculator for its clients, which helps visitors to our website
calculate the impact of inflation on their financial behaviour.
Everyone can thus calculate their “personal” inflation and find out
where there is room to make savings.

After the Russian invasion of Ukraine, Slovenska sporitelta
immediately responded and made a SPACE account available to
war refugees for one year free of charge, along with other benefits
related to ATM withdrawals and payments. It also placed several
ATMs in the east of Slovakia to cover the demand for cash
withdrawals by people arriving. For clients from Ukraine, George
even learned Ukrainian, and an option was added to George giving
clients the opportunity to make a financial donation to a selected
appeal.

ERSTE PRIVATE BANKING

Erste Private Banking, as part of the largest bank in
Slovakia, has the long-term ambition to be the private
banking leader in the Slovak banking market. Among the

key topics for the future are digitalisation, sustainability,
and intergenerational wealth transfer.

Erste Private Banking (EPB) aims to provide a comprehensive
service to clients with an emphasis on discretion and quality of
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service, to continue to digitalise services and to improve the client
relationship management system.

Two major journals, The Banker and PWM awarded EPB the title
“Best Private Banking in Slovakia 2022". This is the first time in its
history that EPB received an award from The Banker journal. A
panel composed of leading experts evaluated applications from
more than 120 private banks from 50 countries. Performance was
benchmarked against indicators in the areas of portfolio
management, asset allocation, risk management, diversification,
growth strategies, customer service, sustainable and socially
beneficial investing, business models, succession planning,
philanthropic services, employee retention, banker education and
training, business continuity measures in response to a crisis, and,
last but not least, innovation.

The turbulent year 2022 brought inevitable changes

EPB clients, under the influence of the sudden and substantial
changes during 2022, changed their usual behaviour in many
ways. Due to the slump in the financial markets, the dynamics of
investment decreased. ETF strategies instead of investing in
mutual funds became more prominent. At the same time, high
inflation and the subsequent increase in rates was also reflected
in an expectation of higher rates on deposit products. After several
years, clients again showed interest in term deposits and, to a
greater extent, in bonds. EPB even offered its clients inflation
bonds with an underlying HICP index (Harmonized Index of
Consumer Prices).

1.1 billion

Assets under the management of Erste Private Banking

Digitalisation also dominates private banking

At the end of 2022, Erste Private Banking managed assets totalling
almost EUR 1.1 billion for almost 1600 clients. More than 50% of
EPB'’s portfolio consists of client investments. The year 2022 was
also very successful in terms of growth in the number of new
clients, thanks to the possibility of complete client onboarding via
George.

Digital channels are increasingly sought by EPB clients. An answer
is to expand the range of equities and ETFs traded via George,
whereby at the end of 2022 there were almost 1000 titles on offer.
Clients have the opportunity to invest online in euros or US dollars.
Online communication between private bankers and clients is
already a matter of course, to which EPB also adds expert
webinars on current topics.

CORPORATE BANKING CONTINUES TO
GROW

Financial health is a priority for Slovenska sporitelfia also
in corporate banking. It is therefore implementing

innovative digital solutions to make it easier to access
financial services from anywhere at any time.

Despite the difficult economic situation, lending to firms did not
grind to a halt in 2022. Quite the opposite. The volume of loans in
the market increased at a brisk pace, which Slovenska sporitelfia
managed to surpass with year-on-year non-financial corporations
portfolio growth almost 19%. This could also be seen in the Bank’s

market share of loans to non-financial companies, which rose
above the 20% mark for the first time.

Leasing and factoring also saw dynamic growth. Leasing
receivables increased by 23% year on year as the Bank financed
a variety of assets ranging from railway transport equipment
through cars and vans to technology. Factoring continued to build
its stock of financed receivables at a rapid pace, where after the
59% increase in 2021 the Bank posted a 18% rise in 2022.

After years of extremely low interest rates, the rise in 2022 led to
an immediate inflow of deposits from non-financial corporate
clients. Corporate deposits grew by nearly EUR 562 million
(+26%).

€803 million

growth of the corporate portfolio in 2022 (non-financial
corporation, net)

Innovation and digitalisation

The specific requirements of corporate banking clients and
problems of scaling make it a difficult area in which to implement
banking innovations or digitalisation. Despite these challenges,
Slovenska sporitelfia launched several new online solutions for
firms in 2022, reaffirming its role as a leader in digitalisation. The
new services allow firms to open a business account online and
take out an overdraft, instalment loan, or a combination thereof,
without setting foot in a branch. The business e-shop they can
also find leasing and insurance.

The Bank continued its integration of Data Science into corporate
banking. The number of pre-approved limits was more than
doubled thanks to improvements in the approval model.

Responsible financing

Building financial health is at the heart of the Bank’s interest. It
emphasises transparency in evaluating firms’ creditworthiness
and has therefore launched a unique app, the Financial Health
Index, which shows clients their rating and selected financial
indicators. Clients also the opportunity to benchmark themselves
against competitors. The app provides tips for maintaining or
improving performance.

Slovenska sporitelfia aims to go beyond providing advice to its
partners on responsible financing by providing financing for
solutions that reduce energy consumption in manufacturing or
buildings, reduce firms’ carbon footprint and promote electric
vehicle use or environmentally friendly agriculture. A notable
example was financing for railway transport technology that helps
to reduce carbon dioxide emissions from transport. This financing
also contributed towards Erste winning the Global Finance award
for: Outstanding Leadership in Sustainable Infrastructure Finance
- Regional Award Central & Eastern Europe.

The Bank continued in providing financial assistance for clients in
bridging over and mitigating adverse external factors. In the first
half of 2022, clients continued to receive funds from guarantee
programmes mitigating the effects of the pandemic, which were
gradually replaced by a more general anti-crisis guarantee.

Seed Starter - a unique programme

The Seed Starter programme helps firms through their initial phase
to reach long-term sustainable growth. Besides financing, it offers
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assistance, inspiration and education. For the Bank, it is an
opportunity to find projects with beneficial synergies. An example
is its cooperation with the start-up PalmApp, whose app for firms
to provide advance payments tailored to the individual
requirements of employees offers new opportunities for the Bank’s
clients.

Higher trading income in the financial institutions
segment

Despite the downturn in securities markets, revenues from the
financial institutions segment were the highest in over five years.
Trading income exceeded expectations as a result of increased
volatility both on equities markets and in currency pairs. After
several years of minimal interest income, this once again became
a not negligible part of overall income in the financial institutions
segment. Compared to the previous year, income from securities
management services and depository services was higher but the
growth rate was slower. The change in interest rates also had a
negative effect on the activity of investors in the primary market
and the volumes of debt security placements.
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THE ECONOMY IN 2022

The economic words of the year were undoubtedly
“energy” and “inflation”.

Economic growth remained in green numbers

The unprecedented military invasion of the territory of another
sovereign state in modern European history shook both society
and economic indicators. Disrupted supply chains and missing
components affected the country’s industrial and export
performance. On the other hand, even in an environment of high
inflation, household consumption managed to stay on a growth
trajectory, thanks in particular to savings built up during the
pandemic. GDP growth thus remained in the green in all four
quarters, whereby the economy grew by 1.7% in 2022 against a
year earlier. This is, however, just roughly half the figure originally
forecast before the military invasion.

4.0
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Economic growth in Slovakia and the euro area (%)

Unemployment continued to fall

The unemployment rate rose by about 1.5 percentage points
during the pandemic to just above 7%. This figure, though, had
already begun to decline during the pandemic and the trend
continued throughout 2021 and 2022. Consequently,
unemployment ended last year at approximately 6%, only a few
tenths of a percentage point above the pre-pandemic low. This
was helped by the gradual lifting of restrictions, which revived
activity in services in particular, but also by government
compensation schemes enabling firms to maintain employment.
The environment of noticeable price growth naturally also brought
demands from employees for wage growth, which accelerated
especially in the second half of the year to almost 10% year-on-
year in nominal terms. On a year-round basis, nominal wages rose
by more than 8%, though with a noticeable decrease in purchasing
power, as they failed to keep pace with more rapid inflation.

Historic level of inflation

The disruption of supply chains, great uncertainty in markets,
heavy dependence on Russian energy supplies, and the severing
of economic ties between the West and the Russian Federation
brought a massive supply-side inflationary impulse. The most
significant categories pushing up inflation over the past year were
food prices, reflecting the importance of Russia and Ukraine in
food supply chains, as well as energy prices. Nevertheless, thanks
to price regulation, they accounted for only part of the market
price growth. Inflation was thus driven mainly indirectly through
firms’ costs. Although supply-side problems gradually eased
towards the end of the year and commodity market prices fell
significantly from their peaks, uncertainty and price volatility
associated with energy remains high. The average inflation rate in
2022 was 12.8%, the highest since the early 1990s.

Impacts depend on economic structure

The energy crisis and geopolitical tension have of course also
affected other European countries. While the detrimental effects
of the coronavirus pandemic were felt primarily by economies
oriented towards services or tourism (e.g. Spain, Croatia),
industrially oriented countries are the most vulnerable in the
current crisis. Nevertheless, the global slowdown in growth and
decline in purchasing power is affecting every country. Economic
growth in Germany, our main trading partner and Europe’s
industrial leader, last year reached 2% year-on-year. Average
growth in the eurozone amounting to 3.5% was driven mainly by
Spain, Italy, and Austria.

The ECB tightened monetary policy

Maintaining price stability is the basic goal of the European
Central Bank (ECB); the sharp increase in inflation thus brought an
end to extremely loose monetary policy. In just seven months of
last year, rates rose by 250 basis points, bringing the key rate to
2.5% at the end of 2022. The ECB also adjusted other monetary
policy tools — ending new net asset purchases, changing the
interest rate on required reserves, adjusting the terms of targeted
long-term refinancing operations (TLTRO) and announced a plan
to reduce its portfolio of purchased securities from as early as
March 2023. At the same time, the central bank’s estimates show
that it does not forecast a return to the monetary target even by
2024.

The central bank has thus gradually withdrawn from the bond
market, which, together with rising inflation and a deterioration in
the economic outlook, has caused a significant rise in Slovak
government bond yields.

Inflation will push down the public debt ratio

The need to respond to the crisis in our neighbouring country has
brought new spending for humanitarian and defence purposes.
Added to this was the need to compensate households and
businesses for high energy prices. We estimate that last year's
general government deficit reached approximately 4%. However,
the largest expenditure related to the energy crisis is projected
for 2023 (almost EUR 3.5 billion), with the total deficit then
reaching perhaps 5.5% of GDP. Public debt is expected to reach
60.5% GDP in 2022, with further decline to just below 60% in
2023. This, however, is due to higher inflation and the associated
rapid growth of nominal GDP.
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2023: a year of security

The key challenge in 2023 will be to secure sufficient energy at an
affordable price for the coming winter season and to find a
strategic long-term solution. This factor is to a large extent
decisive for Europe’s future economic development. However,
despite the difficult situation, Slovakia has a chance of avoiding a
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technical recession thanks to the large volume of EU funds that
should be invested this year. These include old and new EU funds,
as well as the Recovery Plan. Economic growth could thus reach
1.5% year-on-year, with a slight increase in unemployment and
brisk nominal wage growth. This is unlikely to be sufficient to keep
pace with inflation though, which means people’s purchasing
power will decline somewhat.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Loans continued to grow relatively briskly in 2022

Slovenska sporitelfia’s total assets grew against a year earlier by
just under 3% (+EUR 0.6 billion). The slower growth compared to
the previous year was due to a significant decline in deposits at
the central bank. This came in response to a change in the terms
of the European Central Bank’s targeted long-term refinancing
operations (TLTRO), when the Bank repaid EUR 1.75 billion of the
total volume of EUR 2.75 billion.

€23.7 billion

Value of Slovenska sporitelfia“s total assets

Conversely, the volume of loans to customers grew significantly.
Its net value increased by almost 13% over the course of 2022 to
EUR 17.9 billion, which represents 76% of total assets. The share
of loans in the balance sheet thus grew by approximately
7 percentage points. In terms of absolute change, loans to
households contributed most to credit growth (+EUR 1.1 billion),
though loans to non-financial institutions also showed substantial
growth (+EUR 800 mil., i.e. 19%). Slovenskd sporitelfia thus
maintained its position as a leader in retail banking with a market
share of 24.5% and, for loans to non-financial institutions, it
confirmed the growth trend of its market share, to reach a 20.4%
share at the end of 2022.

The volume of debt securities carried at amortised cost increased
by 6% against the previous year to EUR 4.2 billion. The main
factors included the purchase of government bonds and bank
bonds.

Deposit growth slowed somewhat

Year-on-year growth in client deposits slowed slightly and fell
below 6% in 2022. Their volume at the end of the year was still
higher year-on-year by more than EUR 940 million. The year-end
balance thus reached EUR 16.9 billion. Slovenska sporitelfia, with
its market share of 27.9%, remains clearly the largest bank in the
retail deposits market. Although these deposits fell by 2% against
last year (-EUR 305 million), corporate deposits managed to
compensate for this, growing by approximately EUR 907 million.
The reason for such sharp growth was the change in conditions
associated with rising interest rates on the market. The ratio of
net loans to clients to client deposits at the close of 2022 was
106%, which is an increase from last year's 99.5%.

Deposits from banks were significantly lower than in the
preceding year, due to the termination of part of the long-term
refinancing operations (TLTROs) with the ECB. At the end of 2022,
the Bank recorded the received funds as a liability from TLTRO in
the amount of EUR 1 billion. This has also contributed to the need
to issue a larger amount of debt securities, with their value
increasing significantly against a year earlier (+54%). The Bank’s
equity increased by EUR 130 million year-on-year to

SLOVENSKA S

EUR 2.2 billion. The Bank meets all capital indicator limits set by
the regulator.

Operating result up 11% year-on-year

Following a decrease in the previous year, Slovenska sporitelfa’s
net interest income rose by EUR 16 million compared to 2021 to
reach EUR 444 million (+4%). The situation on the market has
changed significantly due to the tightening of the ECB’s monetary
policy. Net interest income was still positively impacted by
interest income on interest-bearing liabilities with negative
interest rates (TLTROs), which amounted to EUR 10.7 million in
2022.

Net fee and commission income increased significantly by almost
EUR 18 million (+10.3%). Fee and commission income from
payment transactions made a significant positive contribution,
while there was also a sizeable contribution from insurance and
investment brokerage. The year-on-year increase in net trading
income was primarily due to the revaluation of derivatives held for
trading.

General operating costs grew at a slower pace year on year (+5%)
than operating revenues (+8%) and reached EUR 307 million.
Personnel costs and other operating costs contributed to the
growth in roughly the same measure, while depreciation increased
at a more moderate pace year on year.

In the final total, the operating profit was EUR 35 million higher
year-on-year (+11%). The ratio of operating costs to operating
income (CIR) naturally improved on the previous year, decreasing
by 1.4 percentage points to 46.3%.

The net profitincreased despite higher provisioning

Net impairment loss on financial instruments amounted to
EUR 32 million in 2022. As the special circumstances created by
the pandemic gradually normalised, the Bank could ease up its
provisioning. The vyear-on-year comparison is thus partly
distorted. In the long-term perspective, 2022 was still below
average.

€243 million

Consolidated net profit for 2022

The Bank's consolidated net profit in 2022 reached
EUR 243 million, representing a year-on-year growth of more than
6% (+EUR 15 million). The improvement was driven by rising
interest and fee income, while expenses — both operational and
loan-provisioning — grew at a relatively modest pace. Return on
equity in 2022 was 11.7%, compared to 12.2% in 2021.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management principles

Effective risk management is one of the core pillars of the success
of Slovenska sporitelfia’s business operations. Therefore, the
Bank strives to introduce and to constantly improve processes for
monitoring, evaluating and managing all the important risks to
which it is exposed. These include in particular credit, market,
operational, and liquidity risks.

The Bank’s risk management objective is to identify all the
significant risks to which it is exposed, to accurately assess their
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potential adverse impact and to have procedures for managing
and controlling them effectively. Risk management is guided by
the following basic principles:

e prudent approach to risk,
sustainability;

e risk management is as far as possible independent of
business lines, it is centralised, and has sufficient resources
and powers to fulfil its functions;

e risk management is integrated; the overall risk profile
reflects interdependences between individual types of risk,
and risk exposure is constantly managed with regard to the
amount of capital available;

e the Bank does not enter into transactions, investments or
products involving risks that it cannot assess or manage.

emphasising long-term

The set of indicators determining the Bank’s targeted risk profile
is defined in a binding document, the Bank’s Risk Appetite
Statement, which is one of the determinant inputs to the Bank’s
strategic business plan.

19.3%

overall capital adequacy in 2022

Capital adequacy slightly decreased

The Bank’s consolidated capital adequacy went from 20.5% at the
end of 2021 to 19.3%. The capital adequacy ratio fell mainly due
to significant growth in the credit portfolio in the first half of the
year. The effect of the increase in risk-weighted assets was partly
mitigated by growth in the Bank’s own funds.

The main contribution to the increase in own funds was coming
mainly from an increase in retained earnings from 2021. The most
significant deductible was year-on-year provisioning to cover the
Bank’s credit risk; this provisioning amounted to EUR 32min 2022.
During the reporting period, the Bank prudently created reserves
to cover risk in the industries most at risk.

Throughout the year, the Bank easily satisfied the ECB’s minimum
capital adequacy ratio, including all capital cushions. The long-
term development of Tier 1 and CET 1 capital ratios copies the
trend of total capital adequacy of Slovenska sporiteliia.

Slightly deterioration in the liquidity situation

The unusually high inflation rate, the increased uncertainty
generated by the outbreak of war in Ukraine and the overall
negative mood in the economy contributed to a slight weakening
of the Bank’s liquidity situation. The growth of household deposits
slowed, which increased the spread between loans provided and
deposits received. The rise in yield curves reduced the value of
the liquidity cushion provided by bonds. This deterioration was
reflected in the liquidity indicators, which were lower than in the
previous year but still sufficiently above statutory and internal
limits. The Bank fulfils all relevant statutory and internal
requirements. The Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) averaged 160%
over the year (the minimum value reached was 145% at the end of
March), well above the statutory limit of 100%. The Net Stable
Funding Ratio (NSFR) stood at around 130% during the year, the

3 The Bank follows the definition of the European Banking Authority (EBA)
in reporting non-performing loans (NPLs).

statutory limit in this case being 100%. The Bank holds a liquidity
cushion of approximately EUR 4.3 billion in highly liquid assets
(mainly accounts at the central bank and Slovak government
bonds), and meets all internal requirements for the survival period
in the event of critical situations (Survival Period Analysis).

The share of non-performing loans? continued to fall

Despite the deteriorating economic conditions in 2022, the share
of non-performing loans at Slovenska sporitelfa fell again from
1.8% in 2021 t0 1.6% in 2022. Both retail loans and corporate loans
contributed positively to this.

In corporate loans, the main factors contributing to this decrease
were the restructuring and gradual repayment of non-performing
exposures and stable growth in the standard corporate loans
segment. Other factors that helped to reduce problem loans
included prevention through a system to detect early warning
signals, timely measures to tackle identified problems, the return
of exposures to a standard rating after recovery and efficient
management of receivables.

1.6%

Share of non-performing loans in 2022 (1.8% v 2021)

Although the current economic downturn has not yet led to an
increase in non-performing loans, the Bank continues to monitor
impacts of the downturn so that it can provide timely support to
its clients, report risk in a prudent manner and mitigate the effect
on credit risk.

Thanks to the efficient process for dealing with difficult life
situations (besides statutory payment deferrals) which the Bank
developed during the COVID-19 pandemic, the Bank can manage
an increase in applicants without pressure on staffing capacities.
For extremely difficult life situations, the Bank has a proven
approach through its Social Bank division.

Impact of legislative and regulatory changes

There was no new legislation significantly affecting the way in
which the Bank managed credit risk in 2022.

FORECAST ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL
SITUATION

Balance sheet set to continue growing

Slovenska sporitelfia forecasts almost 8% year-on-year growth in
the overall balance sheet total in 2023 thanks to continuing
growth in client transaction volumes, both in lending and deposit
taking. The increase should strengthen Slovenska sporitelfia’s
standing in the Slovak banking market. The planned growth in
lending should mostly be financed by means of deposits received,
and also long-term debt security issues. The Bank predicts that
the net loan-to-deposit ratio will not exceed 110%, with the growth
compared to 2022 being due to slower growth in client deposits
than in client loans. Balance sheet growth will be affected by the
TLTRO volumes and the need to comply with MREL requirements.
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Appropriate measures make it reasonable to expect that the Bank
will satisfy regulatory requirements for indicators and parameters
under the CRR (Capital Requirements Regulation) and CRD
(Capital Requirements Directives).

Profitability will remain robust in 2023

Slovenska sporitelfia expects that profits to the end of 2023 will
be higher than the previous year mainly due to rising interest rates
and growth in fee and commission income. Net interest income
will be boosted by higher interest rates and the volume of client
loans. Growth in client loans will, however, mean higher MREL
requirements, which negatively impact net interest income.
Strong competition continues to put pressure on interest income.
Another factor supporting profitability is fee and commission
income. The Bank foresees stable development in its trading
income, despite this return carrying the greatest risk of volatility
as it is directly linked to many market factors. Slovenska
sporitelfia expects an increase in operating costs in 2023, mainly
due to investment in IT projects and arise in basic pay in response
to labour market developments. Investments in digitalisation and
more efficient branch network management are increasing the
optimisation of the Bank’s processes. The effectiveness of cost
management at Slovenska sporitelfia is underlined by the
development of the cost income ratio, which is forecast at close
to 47% in 2023.

Mainrisks

The main risks and uncertainties facing Slovenska sporitelfia arise
from the tense situation in the region and the related economic
difficulties. On the global and Slovak national level, the health of
the economy is at risk from disruption in worldwide supply chains,
price rises due to high inflation and pressure on energy prices
caused by geopolitical problems. Other sources of risk include
changes to banking legislation in Slovakia and the European Union
including the imposition of stricter balance sheet requirements,
and the deterioration of liquidity in the Slovak market as a result
of household and company debts rising faster than their savings.

OBJECTIVES FOR 2023

Slovenska sporitelfia aims to keep up its support for its clients’
financial health in 2023. It wants to be a long-term partner and
financial advisor for households and firms, helping them to realise
their plans and increase their resilience to risk. The Bank will
continue to provide investment, insurance and pension savings
products from its partners alongside its own services. Slovenska
sporitelfia wants to provide an outstanding client experience in
both the range and quality of its financial services. These activities
should lead to more people making more active use of the Bank’s
services. Digitalisation has long been one of the Bank’s top
priorities. Slovenska sporitelfa will continue to introduce
improvements and new functions of online and mobile banking,
both for households and companies. When visiting a branch,
clients will see further benefits from tablets enabling them to
easily and quickly choose the most advantageous products and
services from the Bank’s growing range. The offer for each client
will be tailored as far as possible to the individual, taking account
of their current and future financial needs. The Bank wants to
focus on providing comprehensive financial advice. At the same
time, it has a strategy for digitalisation and the optimisation of
internal processes to provide improved services for clients, long-
term cost reductions and faster development in future. All the
Bank’s decisions will take into consideration the acceptable
degree of risk. Slovenskd sporitelia wants to continue to
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contribute to the prosperity of society, environmental
sustainability, and Slovakia’s progress towards a modern, stable,
and prosperous country within the European Union through its
business activities, the activities of the Social Bank and the
Slovenska sporitelfia Foundation.
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CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The management of Slovenskd sporitelfia recognises the
importance of sound and responsible corporate governance. The
principles of corporate governance are implemented in
compliance with the directives and guidelines of the European
banking authorities and the local regulator Narodna banka
Slovenska as they apply to banking institutions. The most relevant
document for internal management and corporate governance is
EBA/GL/2021/05 Guidelines on internal governance, as amended,
which defines measures, procedures and mechanisms for
selected financial institutions. Slovenskd sporitelfia a.s. has
implemented the Group Governance Policy of the Austrian banking
group, Erste Group, of which it is a member. This policy reflects
the main standards and principles of the OECD Principles of
Corporate Governance, as well as those of the Austrian Code of
Corporate Governance, which is reviewed and updated annually.
The Code of Corporate Governance is a self-regulation tool
consisting of recommendations and proposals for transparent and
exemplary corporate governance. The primary aim of this
voluntary code of conduct is to increase transparency in the
management and control mechanisms of listed companies and
thereby increase the confidence of investors and the public in
governing tiers of the economy. Slovenska sporiteltia is a member
of the Slovak Association of Corporate Governance (SACG) and
has undertaken to voluntarily observe the Code of Corporate
Governance issued by that association (hereinafter the
“Governance Code”). The company takes all its decisions and
carries out all its actions in accordance with the principles of the
Governance Code and the adopted Group Governance Policy. In
the case of Slovenska sporitelfia, the application of the principles
and rules of the Governance Code is influenced in some measure
by the fact that it has a sole shareholder owning 100% of the
shares issued by the company and its shares are not traded on
any stock market. Certain provisions of the Governance Code
relating to the exercise and protection of shareholder rights
therefore need not be applicable or are applied to the sole
shareholder.

Over the course of 2022, Slovenska sporitelfia complied with all
Group Governance Policy rules, as well as the applicable principles
of the Governance Code.

Slovenska sporitelfia has in place a Global Compliance Code
establishing a set of ethical standards, principles and binding rules
for the Bank and its staff. The responsibility of the Bank and its
employees toward clients, and the responsibility of the employees
to one another are the basis for strict compliance with the adopted
rules and standards of the Compliance Code. The Bank applies a
policy of zero tolerance to any violation of this code. The Code
was drafted in compliance with European Union requirements for
harmonising legislation and unifies the internal standards of
Slovenska sporitelfia with the internal standards of the Erste
Group. It is also a practical guide on how to apply statutory
provisions in day-to-day contact with information that could alter
the behaviour of market entities. Furthermore, it is a point of
reference for preventing or resolving conflicts of interest between
the Bank, its staff, management and customers. The Global
Compliance Code sets out the Bank’s anti-corruption policy and
establishes methods and procedures for reporting suspected
cases of corruption or anti-social activities.

Pursuant to requirements regarding the values and objectives of
corporate culture, information for clients and transparency, and
for improving quality in the provision of investment services and
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securities trading, the Bank consistently applies measures
resulting from the Directive of the European Parliament and of the
Council on markets in financial instruments (MiFID Il) for
strengthening consumer protection in accordance with European
legislation. Before providing an investment service, the Bank
provides clients with a Key Information Document (KID) and a
notice on investment services involving certain financial
instruments  (securities, derivatives) to provide greater
transparency on these investment products and permit their
comparison with other products of the same kind. All KIDs are
available on the Bank’s website (www.slsp.sk/kids).

Other key documents strengthening customer protection in the
banking environment include the European Agreement on a
Voluntary Code of Conduct on Pre-Contractual Information for
Home Loans. This has been adopted at the level of European
consumer organisations and the European credit sector
associations.

Over and above legal obligations in this area, Slovenska sporitelfia
has adopted the Erste Group Code of Conduct, which establishes
common values and principles for the whole financial group. It is a
set of binding rules and recommendations affecting the day-to-
day business activities of all the Bank’s employees. The Code
defines what is important in relation to customers, the company,
employees and the shareholder and sets the standard for the
Bank’s conduct as a socially responsible company acting in all
aspects of its activities responsibly, with respect and without
undue risk. It is an important instrument of quality assurance in
internal and in external environments because quality means
support for proper, trustworthy relationships with each other and
with relevant stakeholders.

The Bank has adopted a complaints management policy in
accordance with the methodological guidelines of the Financial
Market Supervision Unit of Narodna banka Slovenska. It has
designed a unified working procedure, specified the competences
and responsibilities of the units involved in complaint management
and set communication standards to ensure the quick, effective
and reliable resolutions that increase customer satisfaction and
loyalty. Slovenska sporitelfia is one of the few Slovak banks to
have created the position of Ombudsman protecting the interests
of clients as consumers and users of financial services in
accordance with European rules.

Slovenska sporitelfia and its employees follow the principles of
competition law without reservation and have zero tolerance for
agreements that restrict competition or abuse a dominant position
in the market. Compliance with competition rules is one of the
Bank’s highest priorities. Every member of the Bank’'s management
at every level, and every Bank employee, bears responsibility for
compliance with competition rules. A specific member of the
Bank's Board of Directors is responsible for the overall
performance and coordination of activities related to the
protection of competition.

In its financial and investment operations, the Bank takes account
not only of economic perspectives but also social, ecological and
ethical criteria under the umbrella of “equator principles”. This
approach is applied in all matters with environmental, social and
governance impacts of any activities in the area of financing to
ensure all projects financed by the Bank are socially and
environmentally sustainable and that all the Bank’s financial
activities comply with applicable regulations and international best
practices. From the environmental perspective, the Bank must
consider the protection and conservation of biodiversity, the

sporitelna



ANNUAL REPORT 2022

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

sustainable management and use of renewable natural resources,
the use and management of hazardous substances, pollution
prevention and waste minimisation. Issues considered in the
evaluation of social and ethical criteria applicable to projects
financed by the Bank include the abolition of child labour, the
elimination of all forms of forced and obligatory labour, the
prevention of discrimination in employment, the ensuring of a safe
working environment, health promotion etc.

As Slovenska sporitelfia meets the definition of a subsidiary that
is covered by the consolidated report of the Erste Group, the non-
financial indicators under Directive 2014/95/EU of the European
Parliament and of the Council (the NFRD directive) are published
by its parent company. The Bank’s obligations under Regulation
(EU) 2019/2088 of the European Parliament and of the Council on
sustainability-related disclosures in the financial services sector
(the SFDR regulation) have been met by publication of the relevant
documents on the Bank s website.

RELEVANT INFORMATION REGARDING
MANAGEMENT AND ORGANISATION OF
THE COMPANY

The management structure of Slovenska sporitelfia, as well as that
of its parent company — Erste Group Bank AG, comprises a
Supervisory Board and Board of Directors. The Supervisory Board
is the Bank’s supreme control body. It supervises the activities of
the Board of Directors and the conduct of the Bank’s business
activities. It regularly reports to the General Meeting on its activity.
The Board of Directors is the Bank’s statutory body, managing its
activity and acting on its behalf. It decides on all the Bank’s affairs
not reserved to the Bank’'s General Meeting or Supervisory Board
under acts of general application or the Bank’'s Articles of
Association.

The basic and fundamental rules of the Bank's operation and
existence are set out in the Articles of Association of Slovenska
sporitelfia, a.s. (the “Articles”). Any changes to the Articles must
be approved by the General Meeting. Building on the mandatory
requirements applicable to every joint-stock company under the
provisions of Act no. 513/1991 Coll., the Commercial Code, and Act
no. 483/2001 Coll. on Banks (the “Act on Banks”), the Articles
govern the Bank’'s organisation and system of management,
relations and cooperation between the statutory body,
Supervisory Board, the Bank’s officers, Internal Audit division and
the Bank’s committees. In addition to the activities set out in the
Articles and entered in the Commercial Register, the Bank may,
following approval by Ndrodna banka Slovenska, also carry out
non-banking activities related to the operations of the Bank and
companies belonging to the consolidated and sub-consolidated
group of Erste Group. These activities, in accordance with the Act
on Banks, are not entered in the Commercial Register. The latest
changes to the Articles were approved by the shareholder at the
General Meeting on 19/08/2021. The changes to the Articles
reflected legal provisions in the area of liability for protection
against money laundering and protection against terrorist
financing. No changes were made to the Articles in 2022.

The company’s organisational structure, the basic principles of its
organisational arrangement, and the responsibilities, activities and
roles of the company’s organisational units are described in the
Slovenska sporitelfia Organisational Code. The Organisational
Code is defined in accordance with the Commercial Code, the Act
on Banks, the Securities Act, the Articles and other acts of general
application, and is binding on all company employees.

The company performs its activities through its organisational
units, comprising the headquarters, branch network, and other
units established under the Bank’'s internal regulations.
Responsibility for the creation, implementation, coordination,
monitoring and control of the Bank’s business objectives lies with
the Board of Directors. In compliance with acts of general
application, the Bank maintains within its organisational structure
a separation between activities and powers and responsibilities in
the following areas:

risk management and banking activities;

lending and investment business, and monitoring of risks to which
the Bank is exposed;

monitoring of risks arising from conducting banking activities with
persons with a special relationship to the Bank.

In 2022 the Bank continued to apply the principle of separation
between risk monitoring and banking activities at all levels of
management including the highest. The Corporate Credit Risk
Management, Retail Credit Risk Management, Strategic Risk
Management and Compliance and Operational Risk Management
divisions must not engage, and during 2022 did not engage, in any
banking, lending or investment business. Competence for
authorising transactions with persons with a special relationship
to the Bank is exercised by the Board of Directors of the company
in accordance with the Act on Banks and the Organisational Code.

Slovenska sporitelfia has not established any units abroad and
does not perform banking activities outside Slovakia.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Internal control system

Slovenska sporitelfia has in place an internal control system with
clearly defined principles and standards. Effective internal control
is the basis of sound operational risk management; it safeguards
the Bank's assets, helps reduce or prevent the potential
occurrence of serious errors or operational risk events, and helps
in their timely detection. The internal control system is closely
connected with operational risk management, particularly in the
area of risk identification and risk control phases. Its
implementation is required by the risk management strategy and
has the following objectives at Slovenska sporitelna:

to prevent and detect errors and any inefficient or wasteful use of
resources;

to prevent and detect abuses and fraud;

to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of banking operations;
to ensure the integrity, accuracy, timeliness and reliability of
information;

to raise the quality of record-keeping;

to monitor compliance with laws, regulations and internal policies.

The Bank's Board of Directors is responsible for the
implementation, regular monitoring, evaluation and appropriate
updating of the policy for an efficient internal control system. Each
organisational unit is responsible for its practical implementation
and compliance within its remit. Senior managers are responsible
for internal control at the level of the executive, and may not
delegate this responsibility.

The Bank's employees are responsible for their work and must
abide by the principles of the internal control system. They
perform their work in accordance with applicable laws and the
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company’s internal guidelines. Moreover, they comply with
competences related to the approval and authorisation for work.
Internal control is a part of their work and responsibilities. The
results of each inspection are documented, and the responsible
employees oversee the remediation of shortcomings and the
implementation of measures identified in their findings.

An independent component of the internal control system is the
Internal Audit division, which reports directly to the Bank’s
Supervisory Board. The CEO is responsible for its establishment
and its operational functioning. Internal Audit is fully independent
from all the Bank’s activities. Its independence is manifested in all
stages of its work, particularly during identification and analysis of
risks, the planning and preparation of audits, including the
selection of a review and evaluation method, drafting and
submission of audit reports, and evaluation and follow-up of
measures taken.

In accordance with applicable legislation, internal audit review and
evaluation are also applied to outsourced and insourced activities,
to the implementation of and compliance with remuneration
principles, Bank information system security, etc. The Supervisory
Board approves the audit strategy and annual audit plan after it is
approved by the Board of Directors and recommended by the
Audit Committee, an advisory body to the Supervisory Board. The
Audit Committee oversees the independence and objectivity of
the Internal Audit division, regularly monitors and controls its
activity and efficiency, compliance with international internal audit
standards and the Internal Audit Policy of the Erste Group. It also
approves the Internal Audit Policy, the internal audit statute
contained therein and its annual review.

The Bank pays particular attention to measures for protecting the
Bank against money laundering, terrorist financing and financial
fraud. Their implementation is a responsibility of the Compliance
and Operational Risk Management division under the management
of the Compliance Officer. Its other responsibilities include the
application of preventive mechanisms in accordance with sanction
policies and measures, and the detection and correction of
fraudulent conduct. Slovenska sporitelfia has adopted and
published on its website a Concept of Protection against Money
Laundering and Terrorist Financing, in which it commits to “zero
tolerance” for the infiltration of “dirty” money into the financial
system, money laundering and terrorist financing, in particular by
emphasizing the application of the “know your client” principle. In
keeping with its ethical values, the Bank also places importance
on transparency in its relationships with both clients and suppliers.
It applies zero tolerance of corrupt behaviour. To this end, the
Bank has adopted a gifts policy, laying down rules for the
acceptance and giving of gifts in full compliance with the legal
environment of the Slovak Republic, Erste Group principles, and
international standards. For proper management of operational
risk in this area, the Bank also provides its employees with the
opportunity to report corrupt or antisocial behaviour, violations of
accepted banking rules or principles (whistleblowing) at any time,
even anonymously, via the intranet.

In its organisational structure, the Bank has set up a unit for the
prevention and detection of money laundering, which is managed
by a person designated by law. The designated person develops
and regularly updates the Bank’s comprehensive protection
concept, including internal rules, control mechanisms, updates of
the signs of unusualness, the criteria for assessment as well as the
procedure for reporting.
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Another role of internal control is to monitor and evaluate the
timely implementation of legislation into internal bank procedures.
Regulatory compliance is supervised by the Regulatory
Compliance Officer, who is responsible for ensuring that the Bank
implements in its policies, regulations and processes in a timely
manner all relevant laws, their updates, and the regulations and
recommendations of the competent Slovak and European
regulatory institutions.

At the same time, the Bank is responding to the dynamic changes
in the field of new technologies and investments in information
systems, taking into account the related risk from the growing
importance of the secure functionality of these systems, by
adequately managing the risk of ICT (information and
communication technologies) with regard to upcoming legislative
amendments, as well as identified risks. The risk framework and
ICT risk management also fall under the responsibility of the
Compliance and Operational Risk Management division, and the
Security division provides full cooperation.

Ensuring the required level of cyber security in relevant
information systems and networks is a prerequisite for the
provision of basic banking services. The Bank’s cyber security is
governed by internal guidelines and working procedures that
comply with Erste Group principles and international standards.
The Security division is responsible for security in the Bank. The
rising level of digitalisation leads to an increase in potential threats
in cyberspace. Therefore, the Bank is continuing its long-term
investments in the prevention, detection and reaction to security
incidents in order to prevent their occurrence and minimise the
potential impact. At the same time, regulatory authorities are also
responding to increased threats by introducing stricter legal
obligations that banks must reflect in their security policies. Their
compliance, conformity to ISO/IEC 27002 standard and
verification of the security of the Bank’s information system are
subject to audit by several regulatory authorities as well as the
Bank’s internal audit. In 2022, Slovenska sporitelfia again
successfully underwent such an audit in accordance with the
requirements of Act no. 69/2018 Coll. on cybersecurity and
Methodological Guideline of Ndarodnd banka Slovenska
no. 7/2004.

Risk management and control system

Slovenska sporitelfia has, in accordance with applicable Slovak
legislation, a risk management system in place that is based on a
clearly defined risk management strategy, the Bank’s risk appetite
and the Bank’s ethical values. The Bank has appointed a Chief Risk
Officer on the level of the Board of Directors. Within its
competence, the Board of Directors has established a Risk
Management Committee responsible for compliance with and
monitoring of the effectiveness of the risk management system
and the periodic review of its effectiveness and adequacy. The
effectiveness of risk management is overseen by the Supervisory
Board, or the Supervisory Board Risk Management Committee.
Within its organisational structure, the Bank keeps trading and
investment activities strictly separated from risk management.
The organisational units for strategic risk management, corporate
credit risk management, retail credit risk management, compliance
and operational risk management and legal services report to the
member of the Board of Directors responsible for the performance
of the risk management function (Chief Risk Officer).

The risk management strategy of Slovenska sporitelfia defines the
fundamental principles and objectives of risk management, and
describes the management process, responsible persons and
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competences for risk identification, monitoring and management
controlling. It also defines the Bank’s policy and positions in the
area of individual types of risk to which it is or may be exposed.
Procedures and measures for mitigating or eliminating individual
types of risk are set out in the Bank’s internal guidelines and
published to the Bank’s staff via internal information channels.

The primary objective of the Bank’s risk management is to achieve
a sustainable ability to identify all significant risks to which it is
exposed, to evaluate and quantify the potential impact of risks on
the value of the Bank’s assets and to have in place policies and
internal regulations enabling these risks to be managed
effectively. The Bank has a process prepared for managing every
identified risk. The effectiveness and adequacy of the risk
management system in place is reviewed with reference to the
adopted strategy upon each major change in the risk management
process, or in any risk-related activity, at least once a year.
Furthermore, when developing and evaluating scenarios of
comprehensive stress testing, the Bank considers various material
risk types (credit, market, operational and liquidity risks, etc.). In
accordance with statutory and regulatory provisions and
requirements, the Bank continuously evaluates and maintains its
ability to bear risk in the changing economic and market
environment in which it operates. The risk management system in
place, including the monitoring of the applicable limits for each
risk, enables the Bank to manage its risk profile in a responsible
manner and to provide and secure financing both under normal
conditions and in the case of major changes.

Within the overall risk management strategy, the Bank has
developed its own system for the Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process (ICAAP). The assessment system takes into
account all real market risks to which the Bank is exposed, and
which must be continuously covered by its own internal capital.
The limits and measures for covering unexpected losses
correspond to the nature, scope and complexity of the banking
activities in accordance with the Bank’s adopted business
strategy. The Bank has implemented the ICAAP framework and
standards, including the RAS (Risk Appetite Statement)
methodology, in accordance with the group policy, and it takes
them into account in managing and setting business objectives.

In accordance with statutory provisions, the Bank has a Recovery
Plan prepared. The plan describes each risk type, the potential
failure points for the Bank, and its scenarios for recovery and
identifies critical functions and the main strategies and procedures
to be implemented in unexpected major critical situations.
Because the Bank is part of the Erste Group, the local Recovery
Plan is, in accordance with European legislation, a direct part of
the Group Recovery Plan and is designed to enable the Bank to
restore its financial position in such circumstances without
external assistance. The Bank’s Recovery Plan is updated annually
or ad hoc in response to changes in the market, and the Bank’s
Supervisory Board is kept regularly informed of it. In 2022, the
methodologies of selected indicators and measures for the risk
scenarios of the Recovery Plan were updated in accordance with
legislation and the regulator’s recommendations.

INFORMATION ON THE COMPOSITION
AND ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY'S
BODIES AND THEIR COMMITTEES

The rules for the appointment and recall of members of the
company’s bodies are set out in Slovenska sporitelfia’s Articles,
which are approved by the Shareholders’ General Meeting

pursuant to the provisions of the Commercial Code. In accordance
with the proper performance of the Supervisory Board’s
supervisory function, the election and recall of members of the
statutory body falls within the competence of the Supervisory
Board. The Supervisory Board elects the members of the Board of
Directors subject to prior approval by the European Central Bank,
which supervises Slovenska sporitelfa as a systemically important
bank, as well as in accordance with recommendations of the
Nomination Committee of the Supervisory Board. The
appointment and recall of members of the Supervisory Board,
other than representatives elected and recalled by the employees,
lies in the competence of the company’s General Meeting and is
subject to the prior opinion of the European Central Bank. The
assessment as well as the reassessment of the suitability of the
members of the Supervisory Board, the Board of Directors and
persons holding key positions is carried out by the Nomination
Committee of the Supervisory Board in accordance with the
guidelines issued by the European Banking Authority
EBA/GL/2021/06 on the assessment of the suitability of members
of the management body and key function holders and the
Methodological Guideline of the Financial Market Supervision Unit
of Narodna banka Slovenska of 5 January 2018 no. 1/2018 on the
demonstration of the competence and suitability of persons
nominated to functions under Section 7(2)(e) and Section 8(2)(c)
of the Act on Banks. The Bank regularly reviews and assesses
whether members of the Board of Directors, the Supervisory
Board and key employees meet the eligibility criteria laid down in
the guidelines.

An important criterion in the process of selecting and appointing
members of the Bank’s top management is not only knowledge,
but also living by the values and respecting the approach both
inside and outside the company. Slovenska sporitelfia is an
innovative and responsible bank that believes in people, ideas,
and enterprise and is committed to fulfilling its mission. The key
values for the Bank, such as commitment, innovation and
responsibility are therefore thoroughly verified and tested in the
case of candidates for top management positions at the Bank
alongside their expertise and practical experience. Persons
holding key positions at the Bank must be able to perform their
duties properly and, as a whole, must support and contribute to
effective management and a balanced manner of decision-making
in the Bank within their defined competences. The proper and
responsible composition of the team of top managers creates all
the conditions and pre-requisites that ultimately affect decision-
making at the highest competence level of the Bank, and thereby
also affecting the very security and health of the institution and
the banking sector as such.

Appointments to the Bank’s Supervisory Board and Board of
Directors also take account of the criterion of gender diversity.
Gender balance within the meaning of the EU CRD IV regulations
is reflected in Erste Group policies and guidelines. It is the Bank’s
ambition that by 2023 at least 33% of top positions (Board of
Directors and C-level management) should be held by women and
this share should rise to 40% by 2025. As at 31/12/2022 this share
was 27%. The diversity indicator for gender balance in the Board
of Directors and management positions is one of the evaluated
performance indicator in the annual individual targets of the
Chairman of the Board of Directors.

The evaluation criteria applied in top management appointments
are regularly updated to reflect changing conditions and
knowledge from practice. In view of the required consistency of
the appointment criteria for individual members of the Board of
Directors with their actual assessment, the Nomination Committee
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of the Supervisory Board did not propose the Supervisory Board
and the sole shareholder of Slovenska sporitelfia any measures
leading to changes in the composition, structure and size of the
Supervisory Board and the Board of Directors, or its individual
members, from the suitability policy perspective, for the year
2022. Following a review of the principles for the selection and
appointment of top and senior management (including persons
holding key functions), the Nomination Committee of the
Supervisory Board recommended that the current version of the
principles remain unchanged for another year pending further
review.

General Meeting

Pursuant to statutory provisions, the Shareholders’ General
Meeting is the company’s supreme body. It is held at least once a
year. The shareholder participates at it in person, or by means of
an authorised representative. The extent of the competence of the
Slovenska sporitelfia General Meeting is defined in the Articles. A
two-thirds majority of all shareholders is required for a change to
the Articles, in accordance with applicable legislation. The General
Meeting has the competence to decide on share capital increases
or decreases, to elect or dismiss members of the Supervisory
Board and other bodies stipulated in the Articles, with the
exception of the Supervisory Board members elected and recalled
by employees, to approve the company’s ordinary and
extraordinary individual financial statements, to decide on the
distribution of profits or settlement of losses and directors’ fees,
to decide to wind up the company or change its legal form, to have
the Bank’s shares removed from trading on the Stock Exchange,
and to decide that the Bank will cease to be a public joint-stock
company. Slovenska sporitelfia has a sole shareholder, which can
take decisions either at the General Meeting or in the form of a
sole shareholder decision, which replaces the effects of the
General Meeting. The Bank complies with statutory provisions
related to the protection of shareholder rights, with emphasis on
the timely provision of all relevant information on the state of the
company, and due process in the convening, voting and decision-
making of the Shareholders’ General Meeting.

All information on the General Meeting’s activities, its powers, a
description of shareholders’ rights and the procedure for their
application are set out in the Articles, the full text of which is held
at the Bank’s headquarters and is also available on its website.

In 2022, the Bank had one ordinary General Meeting, and two
extraordinary General Meetings were held in the form of a sole
shareholder decision. At the ordinary General Meeting held on
22 March 2022, the shareholder approved the annual individual
and consolidated financial statements, the profit distribution as
well as the company’s annual report for 2021, and at the same time
approved PricewaterhouseCoopers Slovensko, s.r.o. as the
external auditor for verifying the financial statements of Slovenska
sporitelfia for 2022. Both General Meetings held in the form of a
sole shareholder decision (on 1 February 2022 and 1 August 2022)
concerned the election of a member of the Supervisory Board.

Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board is the Bank’s supreme control body. The
Articles stipulate that it may have three to six members, two thirds
of whom are elected by the General Meeting with the remainder
being elected by employees of the Bank. Membership on the
Supervisory Board may not be deputised. The Supervisory Board
oversees the exercise of the powers of the Board of Directors and
the Bank’s business operations. Meetings are normally held on a
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quarterly basis. The competences of the Supervisory Board
include supervising the Bank’s compliance with acts of general
application, the Articles and decisions of the General Meeting,
scrutinising the Bank’s financial statements and proposals for the
distribution of profits or the settlement of losses. The Supervisory
Board regularly examines reports on the state of the Bank’s
business and the balance of its assets, monitors the Bank’s risk
management position, deliberates on the report on the risk
management, the report on the remuneration system, submits its
statements, recommendations and proposals for decisions to the
General Meeting and Board of Directors, and assesses information
from the Board of Directors regarding the Bank’s principal
business objectives. It pre-approves the establishment of legal
entities by the Bank and the appointment and recall of the Internal
Audit Director; it elects members of the Board of Directors, its
Chairman, etc. The Supervisory Board informs the General
Meeting of its activities by way of regular reports. The Supervisory
Board may establish committees, define the scope of their
activities and approve their statutes.

Composition of the Supervisory Board and term of
office

Supervisory Board of Slovenska sporitelfia has six members.
Pursuant to the Articles, the term of office of members of the
Board of Directors is five years. In 2022, the Supervisory Board
acted in the following composition:

Supervisory Year Professio Date of
Board member  of n first
birth election

David Member of 2. 222027
O ‘Mahony first 2022
(chairman) election
Jan Homan 1947 CEO 4.5.2012 8.8.2027
(vice-
chairman)
Paul 1965 Bank 4.2.2019 4.2.2024
Formanko (" analyst
Vazil Hudak " | 1964 Company n.1M. 11.11.2025

director 2020

and
financial
consultant
Alena 1967 Bank 2.1. 2.2.2027
Adamcova @ advisor 2016
Juraj Futak @ = 1976 Trade 2.2. 2.2.2027
union 2022
officer

T independent member of the Supervisory Board
2member of the Supervisory Board elected by employees

In accordance with the requirements laid down by guidelines of
the European Banking Authority (EBA) and the European Securities
and Markets Authority (ESMA), two members of the Supervisory
Board satisfied the criteria of independence during performance
of their function.
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Committees and advisory bodies of the Supervisory
Board

In line with statutory and regulatory requirements and corporate
governance principles, the Supervisory Board has established the
following committees:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee oversees the financial reporting process, the
effectiveness of the internal control system (including IT security),
compliance with statutory requirements, the effectiveness of risk
management, internal audit activites and analyses
recommendations made by external and internal auditors. It
monitors and verifies the independence of the statutory auditor or
audit firm in accordance with legal requirements, approves the
appropriateness of the provision of non-audit services in
accordance with the applicable EU regulation and the services
provided by the statutory auditor or audit firm. Based on a
proposal by the Board of Directors, it recommends an external
auditor for the company to the General Meeting. In accordance
with the committee’s statute, its competence also extends to the
performance of activities and responsibilities for SLSP Social
Finance, s.r.o. — a subsidiary of Slovenska sporitelfia.

Credit Committee

The committee is an advisory body to the company’s Supervisory
Board in the performance of its duties relating to the company’s
credit activities and credit policy. Its competence includes
approval of certain types of credit transactions specified in the
company’s Competence Rules, subject to limits approved by the
company’s Supervisory Board, as well as the granting of prior
approval for arm’s-length lending, the transfer or letting of the
Company’s assets or the provision of security for an obligation to
a member of the Supervisory Board, the Board of Directors, or
persons close to them or acting on their account.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is established under the provisions
of Act no. 483/2001 on Banks, establishing the rules for prudent
management of banks and securities dealers. The Committee
independently assesses the remuneration principles of selected
categories of Bank employees. It focuses primarily on the
mechanism for balancing all risks, liquidity and capital, and on
compliance with the remuneration system, with the aim of
achieving long-term prudent management of the company.
Implementation of the remuneration principles is subject to annual
inspection by Internal Audit.

Nomination Committee

This Committee was established by the Supervisory Board as an
advisory body to fulfil its responsibilities related to the nomination
of members of the Bank’s Board of Directors and Supervisory
Board. It was established under the Guidelines on the assessment
of the suitability of members of the management body and key
function holders (EBA/GL/2021/06). It oversees and controls the
candidate selection process, assesses and reassesses their
suitability in terms of their characteristics, skills, knowledge and
experience required for the relevant positions under the Act on
Banks and applicable rules of the European Banking Authority.

Risk Management Committee

The Committee was established by the Supervisory Board in
accordance with the EBA’s Guidelines on internal governance

(EBA/GL/2021/05). The Committee is an advisory body to the
Supervisory Board in fulfilling its responsibilities related to the
Bank’s risk management. It supervises the implementation of
capital and liquidity management strategies as well as all other
related risks such as market, credit, operational (including legal
and IT risks) and reputational risks, to assess their adequacy with
reference to the Bank's risk appetite and approved risk
management strategy.

The meetings of the Supervisory Board committees are held
usually once per quarter and they are governed by statutes that
define their competences and powers. The committees are
composed of individual members of the Supervisory Board, and
their leadership satisfies the requirement of the Guidelines on
internal governance (EBA/GL/2021/05) that an independent
member of the Supervisory Board should chair the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Risk Management
Committee.

Activity of the Supervisory Board and its
committees in 2022

In 2022, the Supervisory Board met four times and made three
decisions by circular resolution (per rollam). The Supervisory
Board discussed documents and approved resolutions on an
ongoing basis in accordance with its competences and
responsibilities in the area of control activity. It devoted particular
attention to regular information on the company’'s economic
development and management. It discussed the financial
statements for 2021, and proposed to the Bank’s General Meeting
the distribution of profit for 2021. At its meeting, it discussed the
annual reports of its advisory committees in the area of the
application of the principles of remuneration policy, evaluation of
the suitability of the members of the Supervisory Board and the
Board of Directors, or in the area of risk — the report of the Chief
Risk Officer for the year. Based on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee, the Supervisory Board approved the
remuneration of the members of the Bank’s Board of Directors as
a component of the variable part of their remuneration. Together
with its strategic outlook, the Bank approved planning documents
for 2023 as well as the annual internal audit activity plan to 2026.

During the course of the year, the Audit Committee of the
Supervisory Board met four times in its ordinary meetings. The
resolution and recommendation concerning the auditor’s report on
the results of the statutory audit and the financial statements of
SLSP Social Finance, s.r.o. for the year 2021 were adopted by
circular resolution (per rollam). Meetings focused mainly on the
activities of and cooperation with the Bank’s external auditor in the
field of statutory audit. Based on legal requirements, the
committee evaluated and supervised the independence of the
statutory auditor, approved the purchase and performance of
non-audit services provided by the auditor to the Bank, discussed
the Report on the company’s statutory audit and financial
statements for 2021, which it recommended for approval by the
General Meeting, it approved the plan of and interim reports on the
external statutory audit of 2022. In the Report, and in cooperation
with the external auditor, it recommended measures to the Bank's
management for improvement in audited fields. Through regular
reports, the Committee monitored compliance and operational
risk, including the Bank's own anti-money laundering and anti-
terrorist financing programme, cyber security aspects and the
results of internal audit activities.

The Supervisory Board’s Risk Management Committee met four
times in 2022. In accordance with its competence, it discussed the
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updated Recovery Plan of Slovenskd sporitelfia. On a quarterly
basis, it discussed reports on the Bank’s risk management, the
Bank’s current risk profile, the development of capital adequacy
and the level of risk-weighted assets in comparison with the limits
set in the RAS (Risk Appetite Statement), and the indicators of the
Bank’s Recovery Plan. As part of the regular annual Internal Capital
Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) and in accordance with
group policy and regulatory requirements, the Committee
discussed the assessment results regarding the severity of all
potential risks that the Bank faces.

In its four ordinary meetings and two meetings by circular
resolution (per rollam), the Remuneration Committee approved
mainly documents concerning an update to the remuneration
policy, the setting of the main banking criteria, and documents
evaluating performance indicators for members of the Board of
Directors. It also approved a list of material risk takers and those
who are subject to special remuneration principles due to this
status under the Act on Banks.

The Nomination Committee of the Supervisory Board worked in
two areas falling under its competence. The first was the regular
annual evaluation of the “fit & proper” suitability of members of the
Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board, together with an
assessment of the structure, size, composition, and activities of
both bodies pursuant to the Suitability Policy. The second area of
the committee’s activity was the assessment of nominations for
vacant positions of members of the Supervisory Board and the
Board of Directors. In 2022, the committee considered two
nominations for the position of member of the Board of Directors
and one nominee for the Supervisory Board prior to their
candidacy being approved by the European Central Bank.

Board of Directors

The company’s statutory body is the Board of Directors. Its
members, including the chairman, are elected by the Supervisory
Board. In accordance with the Articles, the Chairman of the Board
of Directors also serves as the CEO; the Vice-chairman of the
Board of Directors also serves as the first Deputy CEO; other
members of the Board of Directors concurrently serve as Deputy
CEOs.

The Board of Directors performs its activities on the basis of and
in compliance with its rules of procedure. Meetings of the Board
of Directors are held at least once a month. Its responsibilities and
competences are defined in the Articles. It decides on all the
Bank’s affairs not reserved to the General Meeting or the
Supervisory Board under acts of general application or the
Articles. The Board of Directors is responsible for efficient and
proper corporate governance, appropriately taking into account
the interests of the shareholder, employees, clients, as well as
public interests. It takes each decision in accordance with
applicable legislation, the Articles, as well as internal regulations
and guidelines. The Board of Directors decides on the Bank’'s
strategic objectives and business plan, as well as that of its
subsidiaries, on its organisational structure, remuneration system
and staff competences at each organisational level, the company’s
internal control system, the provision of loans to persons with a
special relationship to the Bank, the issuance of selected types of
securities and outsourcing of selected activities, internal
guidelines required under acts of general application or under
Erste Group rules. In addition, it also takes decisions on the
company’s policy for specialised areas, such as business activities
and terms, risk management, including maintaining an effective
system of risk management, compliance and protection of the
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Bank against money laundering and terrorist financing. With the
prior consent from the Supervisory Board, the Board of Directors
approves the Internal Audit division’s plan of activities, and the
Internal Audit division Director’s salary conditions.

Composition of the Board of Directors and terms of
office

The Board of Directors of Slovenska sporitelfia has five members.
Pursuant to the Articles, the term of office of members of the
Board of Directors is five years. In 2022, the Board of Directors
worked in the following composition:

Member of the Year of Date of End of term
Board of Directors birth first

election
Peter Krutil 1968 17.12.1998 4.1.2026
(Chairman)
Juraj Barta 1979 8.6.2022 8.6.2027
Pavel Cetkovsky 1969 26.1.2018 26.1.2028
Milan Hain 1962 1.7.2018 1.7.2023
Norbert Hovancak 1975 1.10. 2019 1.10. 2024

No vice-chairman of the Board of Directors was appointed in 2022.

Division of competences and responsibilities of
members of the Board of Directors

Member of the
Board of

Area of competence as per organisational
structure

Directors

Peter Krutil

(Chairman)

Strategic Change Management, Strategy
and Customer Experience, Brand HUB,
Human Resources, Balance Sheet
Management.
Accounting and Controlling, Properties and
Facility Management, Compliance and
Operational Risk Management, Strategic
Risk Management, Corporate Credit Risk
Management, Retail Credit Risk
Management, Legal Services. The
appointee is the person responsible for the
risk management function at Slovenska
sporitelfia, the person responsible for the
environment, the sustainability agenda and
is the member of the Board of Directors
responsible for the anti-money laundering
agenda.
Client Prosperity, Daily and Digital Banking,
Client Needs, Branch Network
Management, Social bank. He is the person
responsible for the area of financial
intermediation.
Treasury and Investments, Large Corporate
Clients and Structured Finance, Real Estate,
Corporate Clients, Financial Solutions and
Business Client Prosperity, Segment and
Performance of Corporates Management.

Security, Shared IT Services, Data
management, IT Operations, Banking
Services, Retail Processing Centre.

Pavel
Cetkovsky

Juraj Barta
(from 8. June
2022)

Norbert
Hovancak

Milan Hain

Committees, advisory bodies of the Board of Directors
and specialised functions

The Board of Directors may establish advisory committees, to
which it can delegate tasks as well as its decision-making and
approval powers in certain areas. Committees are established via
a resolution that must contain the date of the committee’s
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establishment, its competences, number of members,
composition, designation of the chairman from the committee
members and other particulars determined by the Committees’
Statute. At any time, the Board of Directors may, by resolution,
change a committee’s competences or its composition, or cancel
it. During 2022, the Bank had the following committees:

Assets and Liabilities Management Committee

The committee assesses and approves the management and
control process for the Bank's financial flows and its asset and
liability structure to achieve an optimal balance between the
Bank’s profitability and its exposure to market risks. It evaluates
the Bank’s current position in terms of liquidity, market risks,
capital adequacy and fulfiiment of the planned balance sheet
structure, and it determines the securities portfolio strategy. The
competences of the committee also include the Bank’s liquidity
risk management. To this end, the committee has established a
separate advisory committee for operating liquidity management.

Operating Liquidity Management Committee

This committee analyses and evaluates the Bank’s liquidity
position. Where necessary, the committee submits proposals to
Assets and Liabilities Management Committee regarding liquidity
management.

Credit Committee

The Credit Committee, in accordance with the Bank’s Competence
Rules and Lending Policy, approves lending business (new
business, amendment of terms of already-approved business,
restructuring and recovery of receivables) with corporate clients,
municipalities and retail clients. It does not approve loans and
guarantees for persons with a special relationship to the Bank,
which are approved by the Board of Directors.

Product Pricing Committee

The Product Pricing Committee sets the prices at which the Bank
and its subsidiaries sell products to customers. It approves the
Bank’s product pricing strategy (interest and fees), receives
information on developments in the structure of the Bank's
products and subsidiaries’ products together with their market
position.

Business Committee

The committee analyses business results and adopts measures to
ensure that the Bank’s business plan is fulfilled. It ensures the
implementation of the marketing strategy of the group, the Bank
and its subsidiaries. It approves the annual marketing
communication plan and its individual campaigns, allocation of
campaign costs and evaluation of their effectiveness. It also
considers issues relating to digitalisation of the Bank and
electronic sales channels.

Operational Risk and Compliance Committee

The committee defines the strategy and processes for operational
risk management and sets the degree of acceptability and levels
of tolerance for operational risk. It sets measures for reducing or
mitigating operational risk, including compliance risk. It defines
procedures and strategy for reducing or mitigating money
laundering risk, and measures for reducing the number of frauds
and for mitigating their impact.

Risk Management Committee

The committee’s responsibility is to maintain an effective risk
management system, to monitor and implement the risk
management strategy and procedures pursuant to Section 27(1)
of the Act on Banks. Based on regular review of its effectiveness
and adequacy, the committee proposes adjustments to the risk
management system, taking account of the Bank’s ability to bear
risk in a changing economic environment. It approves changes to
the IRB approach as defined by the NBS, as well as internal models
in the risk management process, ICAAP principles, including the
RAS (Risk Appetite Statement) methodology and stress testing,
and it ensures that ICAAP principles are implemented in the Bank’s
management and its business objectives. The committee
coordinates the preparation of scenarios for comprehensive
stress testing and approves the scenarios, taking into
consideration all material types of risk, including credit, market,
operational and liquidity risk, and their evaluation. The committee
provides support and information to the Board of Directors and
Supervisory Board concerning risk identification, analysis,
monitoring, reporting and management.

Models Committee

The Board of Directors delegates to the Models Committee
powers related to the development, validation, monitoring and
approval of local credit and non-credit models, or the use of group
models related to risk management.

Crisis Committee

The committee’s role is to assess the situation in the event of an
impending crisis and to manage the Bank’s procedures at a time
of crisis. The Crisis Committee takes decisions and determines
responsibilities in a time of crisis. Its task is to regularly monitor
and evaluate the situation, to coordinate communication activities
and to manage the Bank’s procedures for stabilising and calming
a crisis.

Committee on Investment and Treasury Products

The committee participates in the approval of financial
instruments created by the Bank or third parties as part of the
approval process for investment products, as well as treasury
products that may be traded on the banking book or trading book
or offered to clients. If critical events occur that may have a
significant impact on the risk level of investment products or
treasury products, the committee decides on remedial measures
to reduce the risk.

Local Sustainable Finance Committee

This committee oversees the management of sustainability of
financing and is chaired by the Chief Environmental Officer. It
conducts regular (at least semi-annual) analyses of the Bank’s
sustainable financing and, if necessary, proposes measures to be
taken in connection with sustainable financing. It reviews
proposals and initiatives for sustainable assets and approves
framework conditions for green, social and sustainable issues of
bonds.

Ad Hoc Disclosure Commission

The committee assesses possible confidential information from
the legal and factual points of view, decides on any obligations
related to the ad hoc disclosure of such information as well as on
the division of responsibilities in communication with the relevant
supervisory authorities. In the event of a need for ad hoc
publication or in the event of its postponement, committee
members are required to agree on the wording of the disclosure.
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Specialised functions

The Board of Directors, in accordance with the defined applicable
legislation, appoints persons to bear responsibility for specific
areas and activities. Slovenska sporitelfia appoints responsible
persons for the following specific functions:

Compliance Officer ensures the fulfilment of tasks under the
programme of Slovenska sporitelfia’'s own activity against money
laundering and terrorist financing. The compliance officer reports
directly to the member of the Bank's Board of Directors
responsible for risk management. In the absence of the
Compliance Officer, the responsibilities and competences are
taken over by the designated Deputy Compliance Officer.

Data Protection Officer (in accordance with the GDPR) assesses,
prior to the processing of personal data at Slovenska sporitelfa,
whether there is any potential danger of infringement of data
subjects’ rights and freedoms. The responsibilities and
competences of this officer are detailed in the guidelines on
“Ensuring Personal Data Privacy”.

The persons responsible for specific areas in financial
intermediation monitor compliance with the obligations of
employees performing activities in accordance with the Act on
Financial Intermediation and Financial Advice, especially in deposit
taking, lending, insurance, and reinsurance.

The persons responsible for MiFID (Markets in Financial
Instruments Directive) monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of
measures and procedures to ensure the Bank’s provision of
investment services complies with its obligations as a securities
dealer under the Securities Act. The responsibility is divided into
two areas. The first is the definition of operational controls,
checking their fulfilment, reporting and organisation in this area
and MIFID Il implementation. The second person is responsible for
the development, methodology and administration of investment
products and related guidelines, and for customer care and related
control activities.

The FATCA Officer is responsible for the implementation of the
American Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) and
compliance with its provisions.

The BCM Officer (Business Continuity Management) is
responsible for managing the Bank’s policy on operational and
business continuity and the implementation of rules in this area.

The Chief Risk Officer is responsible for the implementation of the
Bank’s risk management system and monitoring of its
effectiveness.

The Consumer Protection Contact Person coordinates and
implements consumer protection requirements into the Bank’s
systems, processes and products. They also coordinate and
implement requirements from the supervisory authorities for
consumer protection.

The Chief Environmental Officer and Sustainability Officer
implements an environmental concept of sustainability into
corporate strategy, manages environmental protection and
defines rules for combatting climate change in the framework of
the within the Bank.

The Diversity Officer implements the Erste Group’s rules and
principles on diversity at the local level; responsible also for local
initiatives promoting diversity and solutions for diversity and
inclusion.
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The person responsible for the protection of competition
provides for and coordinates the Bank’s activities relating to the
protection of competition and compliance with fair competition
rules including rules on anti-competitive conduct and prohibited
agreements.

The Safeguarding Officer is responsible for establishing and
regularly reviewing measures and procedures for the protection of
clients’ funds and financial instruments, their separation and
proper record keeping, including prevention of their unauthorised
use; as well as responsible for compliance with related
requirements under the act on securities and investment services
and MiFID II.

The Regulatory Compliance Officer is responsible for ensuring
compliance with legislation through the Programme for legislative
compliance control, whose aim is to mitigate risks connected with
non-compliance with legislation. They gather, monitor, assess and
report information to the competent directors and heads of
divisions, and the members of the Board of Directors and
Supervisory Board who are authorised to adopt decisions and
appropriate mitigation measures.

The Cyber Security Manager is responsible for designing,
adopting and enforcing security measures at the Bank. They stand
outside the management structure for the operation and
development of information technology services and at the same
time meet the knowledge standards required for performing this
function. In the event of their absence, their deputy takes over
their responsibilities and competences.

Supervisory and other board memberships of
members of the Board of Directors

The Act on Banks regulates the holding of functions in the
management and supervisory bodies of other companies by
members of a statutory body. In 2022, members of the Board of
Directors of Slovenska sporitelfia acted in statutory and similar
bodies of Slovak companies or interest groups in accordance with
the Act on Banks, as follows:

Member of the
Board of
Directors
Peter Krutil
(Chairman)

Area of competence

Member of the Presidium of the Slovak
Banking Association, member of the Board
of Trustees of the Slovenska sporitelfia
Foundation

Member of the Supervisory Board of
KOOPERATIVA poistoviia, a.s. Vienna
Insurance Group, member of the
Supervisory Board of Asset Management
Slovenskej sporitelne, sprav. spol., a.s.
Vice-chairman of the Deposit Protection
Fund Council, managing director of
Procurement Services SK, s.r.o., chairman
of the Supervisory Board of LANED, a.s.,
member of the Supervisory Board of Prva
stavebna sporitelna, a.s.

Member of the Board of the Slovak-
Austrian Chamber of Commerce; member
of the Board of the American Chamber of
Commerce in Slovakia, member of the
Supervisory Board of Asset Management
Slovenskej sporitelne, sprav. spol., a.s.
Member of the Supervisory Board of
Monilogi s.r.o., member of the Supervisory
Board of Erste Digital GmbH

Juraj Barta

Pavel
Cetkovsky

Norbert
Hovancak

Milan Hain

sporitelna



ANNUAL REPORT 2022

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Policy and principles of remuneration for members of
the Board of Directors

The remuneration of members of the statutory body, the
Supervisory Board and selected categories of employees in
Slovenska sporitelfia is in accordance with the Act on Banks,
employment law, in particular the Labour Code and the
implementing directives of the European Parliament and the
Council that affect supervision of remuneration principles in
banks, such as CRD IV, now amended by CRD V (the directive on
access to the activity of credit institutions and the prudential
supervision of credit institutions and investment firms) and the
Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MiFID Il), legislation
issued by Narodna banka Slovenska, and the guidelines of the
European Banking Authority (EBA) and European Securities and
Markets Authority (ESMA) on remuneration policy.

The remuneration policy takes account of the principle of
proportionality and the requirements of EU legislation calling for
limitation of the risk resulting from the motivation of persons who
could have a material effect on the Bank’s activity and risk profile.
Rules for remuneration of specific groups of employees adopted
by the Bank are drawn up with consideration of the Bank’s activity,
the Bank’s risk profile and the significance of the impact of
individual categories of staff on the risk profile. The basic
remuneration principles and strategy for the aforementioned
persons who are subject to the remuneration principles
established by the Act on Banks are approved by the Supervisory
Board’s Remuneration Committee, which also monitors
compliance with these principles. The Remuneration Committee
conducts its activities under powers delegated by the Supervisory
Board. The Supervisory Board is responsible for the adoption and
upholding of the remuneration policy and monitors its
implementation to ensure its proper functioning. It may delegate
its responsibilities for remuneration to the Remuneration
Committee or, conversely, it may at any time withdraw, in whole
or in part, the Remuneration Committee’s responsibilities in
matters of remuneration. The Remuneration Committee cannot be
given competence to approve the variable remuneration of
members of the Board of Directors or to approve payments related
to the early termination of an employment contract or any other
relationship with members of the Board of Directors.

Members of the Remuneration Committee are actively involved in
the design of remuneration policies and models. Their principal
tasks include setting the remuneration strategy for executive
management, for material risk takers (employees with a significant
influence on the Bank'’s risk profile resulting from their position and
professional activities) and the heads of control units, ex-post and
ex-ante information on material changes in commission-based
variable remuneration schemes, and approving the variable
remuneration model and practices for all employees (for example,
approving conditions for bonus payments, instrument types, the
balance of fixed and variable remuneration components, and
performance indicators for members of the Board of Directors).
The Remuneration Committee conducts regular reviews of
remuneration policy and assesses new schemes for variable
remuneration or fundamental changes in existing schemes.

In accordance with statutory requirements and rules as well as the
methodology adopted by Erste Group, remuneration is divided into
2 parts - fixed and variable. The variable remuneration component
may reach at most 100% of the fixed remuneration component.

In accordance with the Act on Banks, the Bank applies the
following remuneration model for the payment of the variable

component of total remuneration, in which there are two methods
of payment of the variable component. In the first method, a 4-
year or 5-year deferral in the form of investment certificates is
applied to the 40% part of the variable remuneration component,
and the remaining 60% is divided into two equal parts, one of
which is payable in cash and the other in the form of investment
certificates maturing after one year. In the second method (if the
variable remuneration component is greater than EUR 150 000),
the 60% part of the awarded variable remuneration is subject to a
4-year or 5-year deferral (the “deferred part”) in the form of
investment certificates. The remaining 40% share of the awarded
variable remuneration component is divided into two equal parts,
one of which is payable immediately and the other in the form of
investment certificates maturing after one year. If a material risk
taker is a member of the Board of Directors, the Supervisory
Board, or a managerial employee, the deferral period is 5 years.
The deferral period for all other material risk takers is 4 years. The
deferred bonus component may be spread over several payments
during the deferral period in accordance with Section 23b(13) of
Act no. 483/2001 Coll. on Banks. The claim to payment of the
deferred remuneration does not expire faster than in the case of
proportional payment. If the annual variable component of the
total remuneration is less than EUR 50 000, and is not higher than
one third of the employee’s total annual remuneration, the
conditions for deferral of the bonus do not apply — the bonus is
paid out as one cash payment.

Payment of the variable part of the remuneration is linked to
fulfilment of predetermined criteria. Individual remuneration is
based on a combination of the assessment of individual work
performance and evaluation of the Bank's overall results.
Objectives are set within the risk management system so that in
the event of their non-fulfiiment, the variable portion of total
remuneration for the period evaluated will be decreased, or
possibly not paid. Payment of the variable part of remuneration is
subject to the conditions of zero tolerance in the event of
conviction for a crime related to performance of work function,
fraudulent conduct, conduct contrary to the Bank’s internal
guidelines or violation of obligations ensuing from legislation. The
Bank also has a principle in place that no insurance or other
hedging strategy may be applied in connection with remuneration
or responsibility that could reduce the impact of remuneration
principles focused on risk.

Erste Group’s remuneration policy stipulates that Bank employees
who are members of the Supervisory Board in other Erste Group
companies are not entitled to remuneration for their Supervisory
Board functions.

Implementation of remuneration principles according to the
approved methodology is subject to annual review by the Internal
Audit division of Slovenska sporitelfia. The Internal Audit review
for 2021 did not find any significant shortcomings in the
procedures and rules for calculating and awarding the variable
component of the total remuneration. Slovenska sporitelfa
submits the review of compliance with remuneration rules to
Narodnd banka Slovenska by 30 June of the year following the
calendar year to which the report relates.

Pursuant to Decree of Narodnd banka Slovenska and in
accordance with Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 of the European
Parliament and of the Council, Slovenska sporitelfia publishes the
following information on its website:

e information concerning the decision-making process
used for determining the remuneration policy as well as
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the number of meetings held by the Supervisory Board,
which oversees remuneration during the financial year,
including information about the composition and
mandate of the Remuneration Committee and on any
external advisor whose services were used for setting
remuneration policy;

. information on the roles of the relevant stakeholders;

e information on the link between pay and performance;

e the most important design characteristics of the
remuneration system, including information on the
criteria used for performance measurement and risk
adjustment, deferment policy and vesting criteria;

e the ratios between fixed and variable remuneration set
in accordance with Article 94(1)(g) of Directive
2013/36/EU;

e the payment model used for the variable component of
total remuneration in divisionalised business units;

e information on the performance criteria on which
entitlement to shares, options or variable components of
remuneration is based;

e the main parameters and rationale for any variable
component scheme and any other non-cash benefits;

e the number of individuals being remunerated
EUR 1 million or more for the financial year in question;

e aggregate quantitative information on remuneration
broken down by business area; and

e aggregate quantitative information on remuneration,
broken down by senior management and members of
staff whose actions have a material impact on the risk
profile of the Bank, as stipulated in Article 450(1)(h) of
the aforementioned Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 of the
European Parliament and of the Council;

. use of the derogation provided for in Article 94(3) of
Directive 2013/36/EU.

Activities of the Board of Directors in 2022

In 2022, the Board of Directors met 45 times. Three decisions
were taken in the form of a circular resolution (per rollam). The
Board of Directors regularly discussed the Bank's financial results.
It fulfilled control activity and security policy obligations either by
considering reports drawn up by the company’s internal audit or
by discussing reports on compliance and evaluation of the
programme of own activity against money laundering and terrorist
financing. Particular attention was paid to risk management, credit
portfolio development analyses, and monitoring of customer
behaviour to protect shareholders’ and clients’ funds. In order to
streamline workflows, the Board of Directors also decided to make
changes to the company’s organisational structure and approved
policies and strategic programmes focused on change
management. Matrix-managed units with elements of agile
management were implemented in the Bank's organisational
structure. Changes in the legislative environment, regulatory
requirements as well as changes in market conditions were
reflected in decisions made by the Board of Directors concerning
consumer protection, business conditions and product policy, an
update to the programme of own activity against money
laundering and terrorism financing, and the adoption of the
environmental protection policy. Strategic decisions on
investments in information technology were implemented through
activities aimed at the development of services for clients,
communication and sales channels, digital technologies and
company culture and values. The Board of Directors, within the
scope of its duties and competences, applied decisions in
accordance with ECB and EBA regulations and guidelines in the
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areas of remuneration, dividend policy, risk and capital
management. In 2022, the crisis team that had coordinated all the
Bank’s activities related to the pandemic situation caused by the
SARS-CoV-2 virus and the protection against its spread in the
branches and the head office building was phased out. Among
other measures, the Bank employed the maximum possible
installation and use of information technology and online
communication channels to enable employees to work from home
to the extent the nature of their work and security permitted it. All
the Bank’s actions, including preventive measures, took account
of the fact that the banking sector was designated as critical
infrastructure that had to be kept in operation even during the
pandemic. In connection with the military conflict in Ukraine, the
Board of Directors also adopted measures in 2022 in light of the
evolving geopolitical situation, taking into account the protection
and assistance needs of displaced residents and refugees from
the conflict zone. In its decisions, the Board of Directors worked
from market information and analyses in line with current and
expected economic developments in the Slovak economy and its
financial and banking sectors, taking into account the Bank’s
adopted strategic objectives and the evolution of liquidity, capital
and risk positions.

SHAREHOLDERRIGHTS, KEY FUNCTIONS
OF OWNERSHIP AND SHARE CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

Shares forming the company’s share capital may be issued only as
registered book-entry shares. Changes to their form or type are
forbidden by law. The company is a private joint-stock company.
The Bank’s share capital is EUR 212 000 000. It is divided into
212 000 registered book-entry shares. The par value of one share
is EUR 1 000. The shares have not been admitted for trading on
any regulated market. The shares are registered in the Central
Securities Depository of the Slovak Republic in accordance with
applicable legislation. Shares carry the right to participate in the
management, profit and liquidation balance, and voting rights. The
securities forming the share capital are transferable without
restrictions.

As at 31 December 2022, a qualified participation of 100% in the
Bank’s share capital is held by Erste Group Bank AG, registered
office Am Belvedere 1, 1010 Vienna, Austria.

The company applies principles of equitable treatment of
shareholders in a manner appropriate to the fact that the Bank has
a sole shareholder. Pursuant to the company’'s Articles of
Association, the Bank applies special provisions for a sole
shareholder. The voting rights of the sole shareholder are not
limited and the management of Slovenska sporitelfia is not aware
of the existence of any agreement that could restrict
transferability of securities or restrict voting rights. As at the date
of writing this report, Slovenska sporitelfia has not issued any
employee shares or shares with special control rights. In 2022,
Slovenska sporitelfia did not acquire any own shares, interim
shares or participating interests or shares; nor does it acquire any
interim shares or participating interests in its parent accounting
entity pursuant to Section 22 of the Accounting Act. Any decision
to increase or decrease the Bank's share capital, to issue or
redeem shares lies in the direct responsibility of the General
Meeting. The shareholder is entitled to participate at the General
Meeting, to vote, to make proposals and to request information
and explanations concerning the company’s affairs, or the affairs
of entities controlled by the company that relate to the subject of
discussion of the General Meeting. The shareholder also has the
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right to a share in the company’s profit (dividend), which the
General Meeting determines for distribution based on the
company’s profit. The shareholder also has the right to decide on
the payment of board members’ fees for members of the
Supervisory Board in the proposal for profit distribution. The Bank
adopted dividend policies that use conservative and prudential
assumptions to meet applicable capital requirements after each
dividend distribution.

In accordance with the Articles, the shareholder has the right to
appoint and to recall members of the Supervisory Board, other
than members elected by employees. The Bank provides regular
information to the shareholder in annual, semi-annual and
quarterly reports submitted to the regulatory authority so that the
shareholder is sufficiently informed about the company’s state and
the state of its investment.

The company is not aware of any significant agreements to which
the Bank is a party which will take effect, be amended or cease to
be valid because of a change in control of the Bank occurring in
connection with a takeover bid.

The Bank’s relations with members of its bodies and its
employees, regarding the end of their tenure or termination of
employment, are governed by the Labour Code, the Act on Banks
and the Commercial Code.

For the year 2022, Slovenska sporitelfia does not record any
operating expenses related to research activities and did not
receive any state subsidies.

List of entities included in the consolidated financial statements
prepared as at 31 December 2022 (subsidiaries and associated
companies in which the Bank holds a stake exceeding 20% of
share capital):

. LANED a.s., registered office Tomasikova 48, 83271
Bratislava, ID no.: 35 918 918
. SLSP  Social Finance, s.r.o., registered office
Tomasikova 48, 832 01 Bratislava, ID no.: 52 840 107
o Dostupny Domov j.s.a., registered office Farska 48,
949 01 Nitra, ID no.: 52 990 401 (49.88% affiliated
company to SLSP Social Finance, s.r.o.)
. SLSP Seed Starter, s.r.0., registered office Tomasikova 48,
831 04 Bratislava, ID no.: 54 736 196
. Procurement Services SK, s.r.o., registered office
Tomasikova 48, 832 75 Bratislava, ID no.: 36 721 972
. Monilogi s.r.o., registered office Mlynské nivy 1, 821 08
Bratislava, ICO: 54 508 673
. Slovak Banking Credit Bureau, s.r.o., registered office
Mlynské nivy 14, 821 09 Bratislava, ID no.: 35 869 810
. Holding Card Service, s.r.o.,, registered office
Olbrachtova 1929/62, 140 00 Praha 4, Czech Republic, ID
no.: 045 62 861

STAKEHOLDERS " RIGHTS, INFORMATION
DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

As the largest bank in the Slovak financial market, Slovenska
sporitelfa is fully aware of the extent and significance of its social
responsibilities. A long-term interest of Slovenskd sporitelfa,
which is reflected in its strategy and values, is that of delivering
benefit to clients, the shareholder, employees and society as a
whole. The Bank prepares both financial and business plans with
all these stakeholders in mind. It applies the fundamental principle
of effective and responsible corporate governance as well as the
principles of transparency and information disclosure at all levels

and in all relations with its shareholder, customers and staff. The
Bank strictly observes compliance with legal regulations and
corporate governance principles. It regularly briefs its shareholder
and investors of the parent company on all important information
on its business, financial and operating results, and other
important events. It informs its customers and the public of its
financial results and strategic priorities by issuing regular reports
and via press conferences and press releases, which are also
available on the Bank’s website. All information is prepared and
disclosed in accordance with standards for accounting and
disclosure of financial and non-financial information. Employees
are kept informed about the Bank’s strategy and results at regular
meetings, regional meetings, conferences, by means of internal
communication channels, an internal magazine, training
programmes and management personnel. Staff may exercise their
right to information also via their representatives on the
Supervisory Board as well as a person appointed for this purpose
via a confidential telephone line and an email address to which
employees can direct their complaints, suggestions and initiatives
outside the established workflow and hierarchy. Clients have
direct access to an independent ombudsman, who deals with their
submissions or complaints on a case-by-case basis. The Bank’s
relations with related parties are also in accordance with the law.
The approval of transactions with related parties is set aside for
the Board of Directors; where a related party includes a member
of the statutory body, approval falls to the Supervisory Board.
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The Supervisory Board of Slovenska sporitelfia, in performing its
activities over the course of 2022, was governed by statutory
provisions applicable in the Slovak Republic. It fulfilled tasks
arising from the Bank’s Articles of Association, took decisions on
matters falling within its competence pursuant to the Bank’s
competence rules, and was governed by the Supervisory Board’s
internal rules of procedure.

In 2022, four ordinary meetings of the Supervisory Board were
held, and three decisions were adopted by circular resolution (per
rollam). The Supervisory Board discussed and adopted an opinion
regarding the individual and consolidated financial statements, the
proposal for profit distribution and the Board of Directors’ report
on the company’s business activities and assets.

Over the year, it paid due attention to monitoring the Bank’s
position in risk management and controlling the security and
effectiveness of the risk management system through regular
quarterly reports submitted by the Board of Directors. The
Supervisory Board discussed and approved the Risk Management
Report, which was submitted by the Chief Risk Officer in
accordance with the law. It also deliberated on the regular reports
of the Remuneration Committee of the Supervisory Board
concerning its activities and the application of remuneration
principles. Based on the Remuneration Committee’s
recommendation, the Supervisory Board approved the
remuneration of the members of the Bank’s Board of Directors as
a component of the variable part of their remuneration. It
discussed the report of the Nomination Committee assessing the
suitability of members of the Supervisory Board and Board of
Directors on both an individual and collective basis. Together with
its strategic outlook, the Bank approved planning documents for
2023 as well as the internal audit activity plan to 2026.

Following the opinion of the European Central Bank and in
accordance with Article 8, point 12 of the company’s Articles of
Association, the Supervisory Board appointed Juraj Barta to the
position of member of the Board of Directors with his term
commencing on 8 June 2022. It also nominated Jan Homan, a
member of the Supervisory Board, for re-election to this position.
Subsequently, following confirmation of his candidacy by the
European Central Bank, the Bank’s General Meeting appointed Jan
Homan as member and vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board.
During 2022, the Supervisory Board welcomed the new members
Juraj Futdk and Alena Adamcova, who were elected by the Bank’s
employees.

Members of the Supervisory Board were regularly briefed by the
Bank’s Board of Directors on its business activity, the
implementation of its business plan, the balance of the company’s
assets, implementation of the Bank's major projects, equity
investments, purchase of a part of the business and about other
matters related to the company’s activities and development in
pursuing its licensed banking activities. Within its competence, it
approved the internal audit strategy and plans falling within the
purview of the Supervisory Board under the Bank’s Organisational
Code. Pursuant to the amendment to Act no. 483/2001 Coll. on
Banks, the Supervisory Board also examined compliance with the
remuneration principles and implementation of the remuneration
of identified individuals that have a significant impact on the
Bank’s risk. The Supervisory Board was kept regularly informed of
the measures taken by the Board of Directors in relation to the
pandemic emergency in Slovakia.

In 2022, the Supervisory Board worked with the support of
advisory committees, namely the Audit, Credit, Remuneration,

Nomination and Risk Management Committees, which are
established and operate according to their own statutes. The
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Risk
Management Committee are chaired by independent members of
the Supervisory Board in accordance with the guidelines
EBA/2021/05 on internal governance.

Pursuant to Act no.423/2015 on Statutory Audit and Act
no. 431/2002 Coll. on Accounting, as amended, the Audit
Committee of the Supervisory Board assessed reports in the area
of internal control and regularly familiarised itself with the level and
effectiveness of internal audit. In accordance with statutory
requirements, the committee took responsibility for the procedure
to select a statutory auditor and recommended that the General
Meeting approve PricewaterhouseCoopers Slovensko, s.r.o. to
conduct the statutory audit. Within this process the Audit
Committee set a deadline for the appointed statutory auditor to
submit an affidavit regarding its independence. The committee
held discussions with representatives of the external auditor on
the annual financial statements, including the external auditor’s
opinion and the auditor’'s recommendations contained in the letter
to the management. It briefed the Bank’s Supervisory Board on the
outcome of the statutory audit and the procedures through which
the statutory audit contributed to the integrity of the financial
statements. Another important part of the agenda comprised
reports on the Bank’s activities in the area of compliance and
operational risk management, and reports on implementation of
the programme of own activity against money laundering and
terrorist financing. Within the scope of its competence, the
committee reviewed the suitability of provision of non-audit
services and services provided by the statutory auditor and
approved the procurement of non-audit services from licensed
auditing companies.

The Credit Committee of the Supervisory Board decides on certain
credit transactions on an ad hoc basis in accordance with the
Bank’s Competence Code. In 2022, it reviewed one business case,
which concerned the granting of a loan to a person with a special
relationship with the Bank.

The Remuneration Committee of the Supervisory Board
considered, approved and inspected the remuneration principles
for members of the Board of Directors as well as selected
categories of material risk takers at the Bank. The primary focus
was on the balancing of all risks related to the remuneration
system so as to ensure long-term prudent management of the
company, including its liquidity, capital, etc. It also approved the
key banking objectives and KPIs for members of the Board of
Directors and their evaluation for the preceding accounting period.
It also approved the updated list of persons having a material
impact on the Bank’s risk. In 2022 the Committee held four
ordinary meetings, with two meetings held by circular resolution
(per rollam).

The Supervisory Board established a Nomination Committee as its
advisory body in fulfilling its responsibilities relating to the
nomination of new members of the Bank’s Board of Directors and
Supervisory Board and their subsequent repeated evaluation. The
suitability of the members of the supervisory and statutory bodies
is reviewed once a year in accordance with the Guidelines on the
assessment of the suitability of members of the management body
and key function holders (EBA/GL/2021/06) and Methodological
Guideline No 1/2018 of the Financial Market Supervision Unit of
Narodnd banka Slovenska on the demonstration of the
competence and suitability of persons nominated to functions in
accordance with the Act on Banks. In 2022, the committee held
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three ordinary meetings at which it assessed the suitability of
members of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board on an
individual and collective basis and evaluated candidates
nominated to the vacant positions on the Supervisory Board and
the Board of Directors.

During 2022 the Risk Management Committee supported the
Supervisory Board in its quarterly monitoring of the Bank’s current
and future risk appetite. In accordance with its mission, it provided
strategic advice on capital and liquidity management considering
all risk types to ensure their alignment with the Bank’s business
strategy, objectives, corporate culture and values. In 2022 the
Committee held four ordinary meetings.

The Supervisory Board discussed the audit of the consolidated
and standalone balance sheet of Slovenska sporitelfia as well as
the related profit & loss statement as at 31 December 2022. The
audit was carried out and verified by PricewaterhouseCoopers
Slovensko, s.r.o. in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing. It confirmed that the financial statements gave a true and
fair view of the Bank’s financial situation as at 31 December 2022
in all material regards and that it had no objections to them. Based
on the above facts, the Supervisory Board recommended that the
General Meeting approve the financial statements for 2022, as
presented, including the proposal for distribution of the Bank’s
profit for 2022.

/ : ’
David O "Mahony
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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The responsible persons of Slovenskd sporitelfia, with its
registered office at Tomasikova 48, 832 37 Bratislava, entered in
the Commercial Register of District Court Bratislava I, section: Sa,
entry: 601/B, corporate registration no.: 00151653: Ing. Peter
Krutil, Chairman of the Board of Directors and CEO, and Ing. Pavel
Cetkovsky, Member of the Board of Directors and Deputy CEO, to
the best of their knowledge hereby declare that the financial
statements contained herein give a true and fair representation of
assets, liabilities, financial situation and results of Slovenska
sporitelfia and companies consolidated by Slovenska sporitelfia,
and that this Corporate Governance Report and Annual Report
represent a true and fair view of the development and results of
Slovenska sporitelfa’s business operations and position, including
the companies included in its consolidation for 2022, together with
a description of the key risks and uncertainties it faces in
connection with its business activities.

No events of special significance have occurred after the end of
the accounting period for which this Annual Report is prepared.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholder, Supervisory Board, and Board of Directors of Slovenska sporitelfia, a.s.

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Qur opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Slovenskéa sporitelfia, a.s. (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) as at 31 December 2022, and the Group's consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Our opinion is consistent with our additional report to the Audit Committee dated 27 February 2023.
What we have audited

The Group's consolidated financial statements comprise:

« the consolidated statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2022;

+ the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2022;

+ the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022;

« the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2022;

+ the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2022; and

« the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) and the ethical requirements of the Act No. 423/2015
on Statutory Audit and on the amendments and supplements to the Act on Accounting No. 431/2002,
as amended (hereafter the “Act on Statutory Audit”) that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Slovak Republic. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code and the ethical requirements of the Act on Statutory Audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Slovensko, s.r.o., Twin City/A, KaradZitova 2, 815 32 Bratislava, Slovak Republic
T: +421 (0) 2 59350 111, F: +421 (0) 2 59350 222, www_pwc.comisk

The firm's ID No.: 35 739 347. The firm is registered in the Commercial Register of Bratislava | District Court, Ref. No.: 16611/B, Section: Sro.
ICO Spoloénosti je 35 739 347. Spoloénosf je zapisana v Obchodnom registri Okresného sidu Bratistava |, pod VioZkou £.: 16611/B, Oddiel: Sro.
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To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services that we have provided to
the Bank, to its parent or to its subsidiaries within the European Union are in accordance with the
applicable law and regulations in the Slovak Republic and that we have not provided non-audit
services that are prohibited under Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014.

The non-audit services that we have provided to the Group, in the period from 1 January 2022
to 31 December 2022, are disclosed in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

Qur audit approach

Overview

Overall Group materiality: EUR 13.56 million, which represents
approximately 5% of the average of the last three-year
consolidated profits before income tax and levy on banking
activities.

Materiality

We focused our audit work on the Bank which is the most material
consolidated reporting unit. The Bank as a standalone reporting
unit represents over 99% of the Group's total assets as at 31
December 2022 and over 99% of the Group's net result for the
year then ended.

Group scoping

The audit of the credit loss allowance estimate required our
significant attention given the nature of this estimate and its
significance to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit
matters

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the consolidated financial statements. In particular, we considered where
management made subjective judgements, for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates
that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all
of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including among
other matters, consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. An audit is designed to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement. Misstatements may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the consolidated financial statements.
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Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
including the overall Group materiality for the consolidated financial statements as a whole as set out
in the table below. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope
of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of
misstatements, if any, both individually and in aggregate on the consolidated financial statements as

a whole.
Overall Group EUR 13.56 million
materiality
How we We determined Group materiality as approximately 5% of the average of the
determined it last three-year consolidated profits before income tax and levy on banking

activities.

Rationale for the Performance of the Group is most commonly evaluated by the financial

materiality statements’ users based on the Group’s profitability. The quantitative
benchmark threshold of approximately 5% was applied to average three-year
applied consolidated profit before income tax and levy on banking activities recorded

by the Group during years 2022, 2021 and 2020. Levy on banking activities
was added to profit before income tax because of the similar nature as income
tax. The recent economic development resulting from COVID-19 pandemic
and the current macroeconomic situation, including high inflation, led to
volatility in the Group's profit before tax. The average of the three-year
consolidated profits before tax adjusted for the levy represents a stable
materiality benchmark.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Credit loss allowance estimate

As explained in the Note 13, Note 14 We assessed and tested design and operating

and Note Leases to the consolidated effectiveness of manual and automated controls related to
financial statements, management the timely identification of defaulted loans.

estimated total credit loss allowances
for loans and advances to customers,
finance lease receivables and trade
and other receivables at EUR 352
million.

We tested design and operating effectiveness of IT
general controls, including access to programs and data,
program changes and computer operations related to
quantification of credit loss allowances.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The carrying value of loans and We verified that models used for accurate quantification of
advances to customers, finance lease  credit loss allowances are in line with the requirements of
receivables and trade and other IFRS 9.

receivables measured at amortised
cost may be materially misstated if
individual or collective credit loss
allowances are not appropriately
identified and estimated. The
estimates required for measuring credit
loss allowances are significant
estimates.

A sample of loan exposures was examined in order to test
accuracy of credit loss allowances calculated on an
individual basis. We considered management’s
assumptions, including forecasts of future cash flows, by
comparing them to historical performance of the customer
and expected future performance and we assessed
external and internal valuations of the underlying collateral
and comparing them to values used by management in
The identification of significant the expected credit loss quantification.

increase in credit risk or default; the
estimation of credit loss including
estimates of future cash flows and
valuation of collateral; application of
comprehensive credit models - all
involve significant management
judgement. The underlying models and expert judgement applied by
Group in response to the current geopolitical situation
(including high energy prices, decrease in economic
activity) were assessed by our specialists dealing with
financial risk management and modelling. They assessed
the design and application of the models for compliance
with the relevant reporting standards, including
introduction of additional criteria used for identification of
significant increase in credit risk, including stage overlays
Due to the significance of the amount and shifts in risk parameters due to the current

of the credit loss allowances and macroeconomic situation.

material impact of the credit loss
allowances on the net result for the
year, we consider the credit loss
estimate as a key audit matter.

On a sample basis, we assessed the underlying models,
reasonableness of assumptions, and completeness and
accuracy of the underlying data, which were used by the
Group to estimate collective credit loss allowances for
loans that share similar credit risk characteristics.

In 2022, the estimate of credit loss
allowances was significantly influenced
by the current macroeconomic
situation influenced by the
Russia/Ukraine conflict which resulted
in energy crisis, high inflation and
decrease in economic activity.

The specialists assessed reasonableness of the forward-
looking information and its impact on the risk parameters
and accuracy of the collective credit loss allowances. Qur
specialists have assessed a validation process
implemented by the Group and interpreted results of the
validation report.

How we tailored our Group audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the
Group, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.

In establishing the overall approach to the group audit, we determined the type of work that needed to
be performed. The Bank as a standalone reporting unit represents over 99% of the Group’s total
assets as at 31 December 2022 and over 99% of the Group’s net result for the year then ended. We
focused our audit work on the Bank which is the most material consolidated reporting unit. Except for
the Bank we did not identify other significant reporting units where full-scope audit procedures were
required.
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Reporting on other information including the Annual Report

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual
Report (but does not include the consolidated and separate financial statements and our auditor's
reports thereon).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

With respect to the Annual Report, we considered whether it includes the disclosures required by the
Act on Accounting No. 431/2002, as amended (hereafter the “Accounting Act”).

Based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit, in our opinion:

+ the information given in the Annual Report for the financial year for which the consolidated
financial statements are prepared, is consistent with the consolidated financial statements; and

« the Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Act.

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we are required to report if we have identified material misstatements in the
Annual Report. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consoclidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Appointment as an independent auditor

We were first appointed as auditors of the Group on 27 March 2017. Our appointment has been
renewed annually by the shareholder’s resclution representing a total period of uninterrupted
engagement appointment of six years. Our appointment for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approved by the shareholder’s resolution on 22 March 2022.

Presentation of the consolidated financial statements in compliance with the requirements of
the European Single Electronic Format (“ESEF”)

The management is responsible for the presentation of the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022 included in the Annual Financial Report that complies with the
requirements of the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/815 of 17 December 2018
supplementing Directive 2004/109/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to
regulatory technical standards on the specification of a single electronic reporting format (the “ESEF
Regulation”). The presentation of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 in electronic XHTML format marked up using the XBRL markup language is expected
to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the compliance of the
presentation of the consolidated financial statements with the requirements of the ESEF Regulation.

After management provides us with the electronic XHTML format of the consolidated financial
statements marked up using the XBRL markup language, our responsibility will be to perform an
engagement in accordance with the International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised), Assurance Engagements Other than Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial
Information, with the objective to obtain reasonable assurance on the compliance of the consolidated
financial statements with the requirements of the ESEF Regulation. Our updated auditor's report will
either state that based on the procedures performed, the presentation of the consolidated financial
statements complies, in all material respects, with the requirements of the ESEF Regulation, or we will
describe any material non-compliance that we would identify in this regard.

The statutory auditor on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ing. Eva Hupkova,
FCCA.

PH’C(U{ 3 7[9»/7@_{5/ vopers S/fwmc fé’, Sreo

PricewaterhouseCoopers Slovensko, s.r.o. pkova, FCCA
SKAU licence No. 161 SKAU licence No. 672

28 February 2023, except for Reporting on other information including the Annual Report section of
our report, for which the date of our report is 28 March 2023.

Bratislava, Slovak Republic
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2022

EUR ths. Notes 2021 2022
Net interest income 2 427,879 443,946
Interest income 421,31 469,495
Other similar income 39,478 24,541
Interest expenses (18,206) (40,244)
Other similar expenses (14,704) (9,846)
Net fee and commission income 3 174,277 192,203
Fee and commission income 194,582 214,328
Fee and commission expenses (20,305) (22,125)
Dividend income 4 602 588
Net trading result 5 9,794 23,636
Gains/losses from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss 6 (767) 2,267
Net result from equity method investments 1,607 623
Rental income from investment properties & other operating leases 7 294 357
Personnel expenses 8 (155,194) (161,858)
Other administrative expenses 8 (103,843) (110,682)
Depreciation and amortisation 8 (33,354) (34,594)
Gains/losses from derecognition of financial assets measured at amortised cost 1 2
Othgr gains/losses from derecognition of financial instruments not measured at fair value through (2,643) (452)
profit or loss
Impairment result from financial instruments 9 (1,099) (32,114)
Other operating result 10 (15,529) (11,425)
Levies on banking activities (4,665) (5,894)
Pre-tax result from continuing operations 302,025 312,497
Taxes on income 1 (73,971) (69,703)
Net result for the period 228,054 242,794
Net result attributable to non-controlling interests (48) (94)
Net result attributable to owners of the parent 228,102 242,888

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share constitute net profit/loss for the year attributable to owners of the parent divided by the average number of
ordinary shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share represent the maximum potential dilution (through an increase in the
average number of shares) that would occur if all subscription and conversion rights granted were exercised (also see Note 34
Total equity). As in the previous year no subscription and conversion rights were outstanding during the financial year. Diluted
earnings per share were equal to the basic earnings per share.

2021 2022
Net result attributable to owners of the parent EUR ths. 228,102 242,888
Number of outstanding shares pcs. 212,000 212,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share EUR 1,076 1,146

The notes on pages 61 to 176 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2022

For a detailed split of income tax items within other comprehensive income please refer to Note 11 Taxes on income.

EUR ths. 2021 2022
Net result for the period 228,054 242,794
Other comprehensive income
Items that may not be reclassified to profit or loss (67) 831
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (74) 1,006
Fair value reserve of equity instruments (11) 46
Deferred taxes relating to items that may not be reclassified 18 (221)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 789 292
Currency reserve 789 292
Gains/losses during the period 789 292
Total other comprehensive income 722 1,123
Total comprehensive income 228,776 243,917
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests (48) (24)
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent 228,824 244,01

The notes on pages 61 to 176 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2022

EUR ths. Notes 31.12.2021 31.12.2022
Assets
Cash and cash balances 12 2,907,420 1,254,543
Financial assets held for trading 16 47,874 77,139
Derivatives 47,874 77,139
Non-trading financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 17 15,068 17,206
Equity instruments 7,155 9,694
Debt securities 7,913 7,512
Financial assets at amortised cost 13 19,496,688 21,644,120
Pledged as collateral 4,323,689 3,914,418
Debt securities 3,911,658 4,154,899
Loans and advances to banks 49,983 26
Loans and advances to customers 15,535,047 17,489,195
Finance lease receivables Leases 233,435 284,500
Hedge accounting derivatives 19 16,454 16,879
Property and equipment, right-of-use assets 28 145,557 146,058
Investment properties 28 1,518 1,453
Intangible assets 29 18,947 17,868
Investments in associates and joint ventures 35,36 37,427 33,720
Current tax assets " - 115
Deferred tax assets " 69,107 71,493
Trade and other receivables 14 129,088 155,573
Other assets 30 35,692 25,555
Total assets 23,154,275 23,746,222
Liabilities and Equity
Financial liabilities held for trading 16 46,131 73,533
Derivatives 46,131 73,533
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 15 20,849,566 21,189,679
Deposits from banks 2,893,347 1,173,628
Deposits from customers 15,972,763 16,912,755
Debt securities issued 1,946,930 2,989,506
Other financial liabilities 36,526 113,790
Lease liabilities 20,051 21,197
Hedge accounting derivatives 19 31,844 103,266
Provisions 32 43,213 38,972
Current tax liabilities 1 2,222 7,392
Other liabilities 31 110,711 131,902
Equity 2,050,537 2,180,281
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 1,918 1,806
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 34 2,048,619 2,178,475
Subscribed capital 212,000 212,000
Additional equity instruments 380,000 380,000
Retained earnings and other reserves 1,456,619 1,586,475
Total liabilities and equity 23,154,275 23,746,222

The notes on pages 61 to 176 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Retained earnings and other funds

. Equity E.quity
Subscribed Fair value Currency Reme.asuremeng of Add't'.onal attributable attributable Total
capital L | Oth Retained reserve reserve defined benefit equity to owners tonon- equit
P ega er etaine pension liabilities instruments controlling quity
reserve funds earnings of the parent R
interests
fund
EUR ths.
As of 01.01.2022 212,000 79,795 39,104 1,338,886 (11) 595 (1,750) 380,000 2,048,619 1,918 2,050,537
Dividends paid / Distribution for _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Investment certificate (114,205) ey (18) (L el
Other changes - - - 50 - - - - 50 - 50
Total comprehensive income - - - 242,888 35 292 796 - 244,011 (94) 243,917
Net result for the period - - - 242,888 - - - - 242,888 (94) 242,794
Other comprehensive income - - - - 35 292 796 - 1,123 - 1,123

Change from remeasurement of _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
defined benefit pension liabilities 7D 7y U

Change in fair value reserve = = = = 85 = = = 35 = 35

Change in currency reserve = = = = = 292 = = 292 = 292
As of 31.12.2022 212,000 79,795 39,104 1,467,619 24 887 (954) 380,000 2,178,475 1,806 2,180,281

As at 31 December 2022 the impact of deferred tax included in “Fair value reserve” amounts EUR 0.0 million (2021: EUR 0.0 million) and the impact of deferred tax included in "Remeasurement of
defined benefit pension liabilities " amounts EUR 0.0 million (2021: EUR 0.0 million). For more details on deferred tax please refer to note 11.
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Retained earnings and other funds Equi Equity
- quity -
Subscribed Fair value Currency Reme'asuremenF of Addlt[onal attributable attributable Total
- Legal Other  Retained defined benefit equity to non- N
capital 9 reserve reserve N : to owners - equity
reserve funds  earnings pension liabilities instruments of the parent controlling
fund P interests
EUR ths.
As of 01.01.2021 212,000 79,795 39,104 1,163,252 - (194) (1,692) 300,000 1,792,265 29 1,792,294
Dividends paid / Distribution for _ _ _ (53,926) _ _ _ _ (53,926) 18) (53,944)

Investment certificate
Capital increases - - - - - - - 80,000 80,000 1,178 81,178
Capital decreases - - - - - - - - - - -
Changes in scope of consolidation

and ownership interest B } } (1,659) } } } } (1,659) 777 (882)
Reclassification from other
comprehensive income to retained - - - 2 (2) - - - - - -
earnings
Other changes - - - 3,115 - - - - 3,115 - 3,115
Total comprehensive income - - - 228,102 (9) 789 (58) - 228,824 (48) 228,776
Net result for the period - - - 228,102 - - - - 228,102 (48) 228,054
Other comprehensive income - - - - (9) 789 (58) - 722 - 722
Change from remeasurement of _ _ _ _ _ _ B _
defined benefit pension liabilities (58) (58) (58)
Change in fair value reserve - - - - 9) - - - (9) - (9)
Change in currency reserve - - - - - 789 - - 789 - 789
As of 31.12.2021 212,000 79,795 39,104 1,338,886 (11) 595 (1,750) 380,000 2,048,619 1,918 2,050,537

For more details on the transaction of AT1 certificate issue included in the line item “Capital increases/ decreases’ please refer to note 34.

The notes on pages 61 to 176 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS

for the year ended 31 December 2022

EUR ths. 2021 2022
Net result for the period Notes 228,054 242,794
Non-cash adjustments for items in net profit/loss for the year
Net allocation of credit loss allowances and other provisions 10 1,067 31,773
Depreciation, amortisation, impairment and reversal of impairment of assets 28,29 31,810 31,776
Gains/(losses) from measurement and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities 6 2172 (950)
Accrued interest, amortisation of discount and premium 2 34,517 46,641
Fair value adjust - hedging 19 (17,974) (116,201)
Other adjustments 7,488 217
Cash flows from operations before changes in operating assets and liabilities
Financial assets held for trading 16 12,120 (29,265)
Non-trading financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 17
Equity instruments 504 (1,117)
Debt securities (173) 401
Financial assets at amortised cost 13
Debt securities (250,137) (285,718)
Loans and advances to banks (50,044) 49,847
Loans and advances to customers (989,175) (1,991,903)
Finance lease receivables Leases 7,577 (51,065)
Hedge accounting derivatives 19 17,891 (425)
Trade and other receivables 14 (47,314) (26,485)
Other assets from operating activities 30,11 (13,963) 10,234
Financial liabilities held for trading 16 (10,393) 27,402
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 15
Deposits from banks 1,183,092 (1,719,719)
Deposits from customers 1,104,834 937,608
Other financial liabilities 14,021 77,264
Hedge accounting derivatives 19 (16,529) 71,422
Provisions 32 11,353 (3,107)
Other liabilities from operating activities 31,1 9,748 26,362
Cash flow from operating activities 1,270,546 (2,672,214)
Dividends received from associates and other investments 4 562 1,141
Purchase of share in associates and joint ventures 35,36 (9,655) (1,157)
Purchase of intangible assets, property and equipment 28,29 (21,154) (24,761)
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets, property and equipment 28,29 796 2,267
Cash flow from investing activities (29,451) (22,510)
Dividends paid 34 (53,926) (114,205)
AT1 certificate - issue 34 80,000 -
Repayment of subordinated debt 34 (10,000) (20,000)
Issue of the bonds 34 232,417 1,436,855
Repayment of the bonds 34 (295,591) (253,511)
Capital increase in associates 35,36 2,000 -
Lease liabilities 34 (6,735) (7,427)
Cash flow from financing activities (51,835) 1,041,712
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 12 1,717,486 2,907,420
Cash flows from operating activities 1,270,546 (2,672,214)
Cash flow from investing activities (29,451) (22,510)
Cash flow from financing activities (51,835) 1,041,712
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 674 135
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 12 2,907,420 1,254,543
::tsi‘rl\i:ilzgs related to taxes, interest and dividends (included in cash flow from operating 360,231 414,337
Payments for taxes on income " (84,042) (67,175)
Interest paid 2 (32,941) (42,497)
Interest received 2 476,652 522,868
Dividends received 4 562 1,141

Cash and cash equivalents are equal to the amount in the statement of financial position line item ‘Cash and cash balances’. Further
information related to net debt reconciliation are provided in note 15. For more details on the new structure of Consolidated
statement of cash flows please refer to note 40.

The notes on pages 61 to 176 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

The group of Slovenska sporiteliia, a.s. (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Group’) consists of the parent company Slovenska sporitelfia,
a.s., (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Bank’) with its registered office at Tomasikova 48, 832 37 Bratislava, Slovak Republic and
subsidiaries. The Bank was incorporated as a joint stock company on 15 March 1994 and registered in the Commercial Register on
1 April 1994. The identification number of the Bank is 00 151 653. The tax identification number of the Bank is 2020411536.

The Bank is a universal bank offering a wide range of banking and financial services to commercial, financial and private customers,
principally in the Slovak Repubilic.

The Bank's sole shareholder is Erste Group Bank AG, which has its registered office at Am Belvedere 1, 1100 Vienna, and which is
the ultimate 100% parent company of the Bank. Information on the shareholding structure of the ultimate parent company is
disclosed in the 2022 financial statements of Erste Group Bank AG or up-to-date information is available on its homepage.

The Board of Directors of the Bank had five members as at 31 December 2022:

Ing. Peter Krutil (chairman), Ing. Pavel Cetkovsky (member), RNDr. Milan Hain, PhD. (member), Mgr. Ing. Norbert Hovan¢ak (member)
and Mgr. Juraj Barta, CFA (member).

The chairman of the Board of Directors is also the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Bank. Other members of the Board of
Directors are the deputies of the Chief Executive Officer.

The Supervisory Board of the Bank had six members as at 31 December 2022:

David O ‘Mahony (chairman), Mag. Jan Homan (vice-chairman), Paul Formanko, MBA (member), JUDr. Vazil Hudak (member), Mgr.
Alena Adamcova (member) and Juraj Futdk (member).

The Group is subject to various regulatory requirements of local, Slovak regulatory bodies defined by Slovak legislation as well as
European regulatory bodies defined by EU legislation.

The Bank is under direct supervision of the European Central Bank within a Single Supervision Mechanism.
These consolidated financial statements are statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the Group) that are disclosed in note 35.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared and authorized for issue by the management board as at the signing
date of this report. However, these consolidated financial statements are subject of approval on the supervisory board (27 February
2023) and the annual general meeting (29 March 2023).
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Significant accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year ending on 31 December 2022 and the related comparative
information were prepared in compliance with applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union on the basis of IAS Regulation (EC) No. 1606/2002.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out in respective
parts of these statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

Measurement bases or bases used in the financial statements (like amortised cost, fair value, etc.) are set out in respective parts
of these statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
for the foreseeable future.

The Group is subject to regulatory restrictions on capital distributions stemming from the EU-wide capital requirements regulations
applicable to all credit institutions based in the EU. The Group does not have any other significant restrictions on its ability to access
or use the assets and settle the liabilities of the Group. Also, the owners of non-controlling interests in Group subsidiaries do not
have rights that can restrict the Group’s ability to access or use the assets and settle the liabilities of the Group.

Except as otherwise indicated, all amounts are stated in thousands of EUR (‘EUR ths.’). The tables in this report may contain rounding
differences.

b) Accounting and measurement methods
Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Euro, which is the functional currency of the Bank. The functional currency
is the currency of the primary business environment in which an entity operates. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency, and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. At
the date of the issue of these consolidated financial statements the Group includes only Holding Card Service s.r.o. as a company
for which functional currency is not Euro, but Czech crowns. This entity is consolidated at equity in to the Group financial statements.

For foreign currency translation, exchange rates quoted by the central banks in each country are used. For the Group with the Euro
as functional currency, these are the European Central Bank reference rates.

i. Transactions and balances in foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency exchange rate effective as of the date of the
transaction. Subsequently, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency exchange rate as of the balance sheet date. All resulting exchange differences that arise are recognised in the statement
of income under the line item ‘Net trading result’. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates as of the dates of the initial transactions, i.e. they do not give rise to exchange
differences. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value (such as equity investments) in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is measured, thus the exchange differences are part of the fair value gains
or losses.

c) Accounting judgements, assumptions and estimates

The consolidated financial statements contain amounts that have been determined on the basis of judg